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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
Bk &

This financial year was full of challenges, the Group recorded
an overall turnover for the year ended 31 March 2019 of
approximately HK$108.2 million with a loss of approximately
HK$36.0 million.

The Group's trading business experienced a difficult and
uncertain operating environment throughout the year. The
turnover from the trading business for the year significantly
decreased to approximately HK$67.7 million.

The Group's money lending and factoring business and the
finance leasing business (the “Financial Services Business”)
continued to attribute a substainable income stream with steady
growth to the Group during the year.

In light of the well performance of the Financial Services Business,
the Group has been actively seeking to expand the variety
of financial products and services offered to its customers
during the year. As such, the Company entered into a sales and
purchases agreement (the “Acquisition”) to acquire the entire
equity interest in a company (together with its subsidiaries (the
“Target Group”), which is principally engaged in provision of
securities brokerage services, asset management services and
investment advisory services on 7 January 2019. The Acquisition
would enable the Group to further diversify its business within
the financial services sector, allow the Group to have access
to the Target Group's professional expertise, customer base
and business connections, and thereby provide viable business
development opportunities to the Group. The business of the
Target Group would further complement the Group’s existing
Financial Services Business and the Group is expected to be
benefited from diversifying its revenue stream through the
Acquisition.

Looking ahead, the Group will actively identify and explore other
investment and business opportunities to further broaden its
assets and revenue base into a comprehensive portfolio. The
Group will cautiously search for investment opportunities in order
to enhance and improve the business operation and profitability
of the Group.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Board and
colleagues for their effort and dedication. | would also like to
express my deepest appreciation to all our business partners and
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Group.

Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI w23 By

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$108.2 million
with a gross profit of approximately HK$37.9 million during
the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared to approximately
HK$463.3 million and HK$30.6 million respectively for the last
corresponding year. The loss for the year was narrowed to
approximately HK$36.0 million as compared to approximately
HK$54.6 million for the last corresponding year. The decrease in
loss for the year was mainly attributable to the recognition of the
followings:

() an increase in gross profit for the year of approximately
HK$7.3 million and a decrease in administrative expenses of
approximately HK$5.3 million;

(i) a gain on changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$5.9 million for the year
whilst a loss of approximately HK$16.9 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2018,

(i) an impairment loss on held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$3.5 million was recorded during the year
ended 31 March 2018,

(iv) a net increase in impairment loss on trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
approximately HK$11.4 million;

(v) an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment in
relation to the Group’s cash-generating unit of the vessel
chartering business of approximately HK$5.2 million; and

(viy aloss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$5.5
million.

As at 31 March 2019, the total assets and net assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$806.5 million (2018: HK$1,007.9
million) and HK$748.3 million (2018: HK$849.2 million) respectively.
The changes of the Group's financial position during the year
was mainly due to the recognition of the impairment loss on
the financial assets arising from application of HKFRS 9 and the
deterioration of the exchange rate on translation of the Group’s
operations in the PRC during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Vessel Chartering

The Group currently owned a vessel which is a multi-purpose
deck cargo ship with focus on carriage of construction material
and waste in the PRC and Southeast Asia region.

During the year, the vessel was out of order in May 2018 and was
later repaired and resumed in operation in July 2018. The vessel
attributed a turnover of approximately HK$3.2 million with a loss
of approximately HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2019 whilst a turnover of approximately HK$3.2 million with a loss
of approximately HK$2.2 million was recognised for the last year.

The increase in the loss for the year was attributable to the
impairment loss recognised to the cash-generating unit of the
vessel chartering business in the amount of approximately HK$5.2
million.

Whilst the vessel chartering business of the Group is expected
to be stable in the coming years, the Board will take caution
measures continuously to closely monitor the efficiency and
effectiveness of the operation of this segment.

Trading Business

During the year, the Group engaged in seafood, frozen meats
and electronics products trading business in the PRC. The Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$67.7 million with a loss
of approximately HK$33.4 million from trading business during
the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared to approximately
HK$427.5 million and approximately HK$19.1 million respectively
for the last year. The significant increase in loss of the trading
business was mainly attributable to the increase in provision for
impairment of trade receivables in the amount of approximately
HK$20.9 million.
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The Group's food trading business, comprising seafood and
frozen meat products, recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$67.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2019, as compared
to approximately HK$253.2 million for the last corresponding
year. As disclosed in the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018, the frozen meats smuggling problem in
the PRC continues to be serious and yet to be solved during the
year. Upon selling of all the remaining inventories as at 31 March
2018, the Group has not stocked up further frozen meat products
during the year. The competition of the seafood market in the PRC
was keen during the year, as such the turnover attributable to
the Group has been dropped significantly during the year ended
31 March 2019. The Group will continue its food trading business
in a small economic scale in the near short term to optimise its
operation. The Group will also closely monitor the food trading
market in the PRC and consider to deploy more resources in its
development whenever appropriate. Looking forward, the Group
will prudently manage its food trading business by minimizing
operational risks through rigorous purchase and stringent cost
control.

The Group's electronic products trading is principally engaged in
trading of smartphones and parts of communication equipment
which are the core components for mobile phones. The Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$234,000 from trading
of electronic products for the year ended 31 March 2019,
as compared to approximately HK$55.7 million for the last
corresponding year. The Group’s electronic products trading
business is expected to face difficulties in the coming years due
to the current trading barriers between the PRC and the United
States (the “Trade Barriers”). Hence, the Group entered into a
disposal agreement on 24 September 2018, pursuant to which,
the Group disposed of its 75% equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu,
a subsidiary which is principally engaged in trading of electronic
products, for a cash consideration of approximately RMB31.1
million.
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The Group will closely observe the recovery of the electronic
products market in the PRC and monitor the development of the
Trade Barriers and its impact to the electronic products market
in the PRC in order to cultivate a direction and policy to cope
with the changing operating environment and will resume its
electronic products trading business whenever appropriate.

No turnover has been recorded from the methanol trading for
the year ended 31 March 2019, whilst there was approximately
HK$118.6 million for the last corresponding year. The volatility
of the resources price has adversely affect the Group's trading
of methanol during the past years. As there was no signal for
improvement of the operating environment, the methanol trading
business has been suspended by the management of the Group
during the year.

Money Lending and Factoring Business

The Group’'s money lending business has been extended to
factoring services and was steadily developed during the year.
There were loan portfolios in Hong Kong with principal amount
of approximately HK$30.0 million and loans granted in the PRC
with outstanding principal amount of approximately RMB48.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$56.8 million) as at 31
March 2019. During the second half financial year, the Group has
further provided the factoring services to its customers in the
PRC with outstanding factoring receivables as at 31 March 2019
of approximately RMB7.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$8.2 million). The Group recognised an aggregate interest
income of approximately HK$10.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 as compared to approximately HK$11.0 million
for the last corresponding year. The Group continuously carries
out regular and periodic review of credit risk over the existing
borrowers. While the Group will proactively explore customers
with good quality to expand its business scale, it will continue
to adopt a prudent credit risk management strategy to ensure a
healthy development in its money lending and factoring business.
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Finance Leasing Business

The Group is engaged in the finance leasing business in the PRC.
It mainly offers machinery/equipment-based finance leases, the
term of which generally ranges from one year to five years and
the size of which generally ranges from RMB10 million to RMB50
million. The Group provides direct leasing and sale-leaseback
services to customers which include companies that are
principally engaged in cold storage, education, property leasing,
property development and manufacture of environmentally
friendly materials. The Group solicits its customers principally
through referrals from former and existing customers, visits to
potential customers by the sales staff, referrals from the finance
leasing industry and the business connections of the sales
staff. Furthermore, the Group’s marketing team has extensive
experience and business relationship in banking and financing
industry, thereby enabling the Group's finance leasing business to
expand its customer base and the business.

The finance leasing business maintained a portfolio with
outstanding principal amount of approximately RMB187.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$219.8 million) as at 31 March
2019. The finance leasing portfolio has attributed a turnover of
approximately HK$27.2 million with a profit of approximately
HK$18.7 million to the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019 as compared to approximately HK$21.6 million and HK$10.9
million respectively for the last corresponding year.

The finance leasing business continue to provide the Group with
profitable income stream under the controllable risk. Looking
ahead, the Board believes that the finance leasing market in the
PRC will still have a great business potential. It is expected that
the Group's finance leasing business will record an accelerating
growth in the coming years.
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Securities Investments

The Group has further invested surplus funds in securities listed in
Hong Kong during the year. The fair value of the Group'’s securities
investment amounted to approximately HK$70.6 million as at 31
March 2019. The Group recorded an unrealised gain on changes
in fair value of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$5.9 million during the year as compared to a l0ss of
approximately HK$16.9 million for the last corresponding year.
The Group disposed certain of the held-for-trading investments
with a realised gain of approximately HK$4.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 as compared to approximately HK$3.5
million for the last corresponding year. The Board will continue
to keep monitoring of the stock markets closely and grasping for
opportunities to realise gains from its investment portfolio.

Looking forward, the Group will actively identify and explore other
investment and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. The Group will cautiously assess and evaluate each
of the investment opportunities to further strengthen the Group's
long term development and performance.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$140.3 million (2018: HK$172.8 million) and total
borrowings of approximately HK$4.6 million (2018: HK$5.4 million).
The Group's gearing ratio, calculated by dividing total borrowings
by total equity, was 0.61% (2018: 0.62%). The liquidity ratio, being
the ratio of current assets over current liabilities was 10.74 as at
31 March 2019 (2018: 5.24).

There was no material changes in the gearing ratio for the
year. The improvement in the Group's liquidity ratio was mainly
attributable to the decrease in trade payables, accruals, other
payables and deposit received during the year.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Euro (‘EUR") and United States
dollar (“US$") and its revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and
borrowings are principally denominated in HK$, RMB, EUR and
USS.

The Group does not enter into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2019.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued shares of the

Company was 3,680,600,000.

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the vessel of the Group with carrying value
of approximately HK$14.0 million was pledged to secure an
other payable, details of which are set out in Note 29(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF ASSETS

On 20 July 2018, the Group entered into a disposal agreement
(the "EK Disposal”) with an independent third party, pursuant
to which, the Group (i) disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Empower King Limited (“Empower King”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which holds an investment
property in Hong Kong; and (i) assigned the shareholder’s loan
of approximately HK$11.4 million in full owing from Empower
King to the Group for a cash consideration of HK$12.5 million.
The EK Disposal was completed on 31 August 2018 with a loss of
approximately HK$691,000.

On 24 September 2018, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “QJ Disposal”) with a director and shareholder
(the “QJ Shareholder”) with 25% equity interest in Shenzhen
Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu®),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
is principally engaged in trading of electronic products. Pursuant
to the disposal agreement, the Group disposed of its 75%
equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu to the QJ Shareholder for a
cash consideration of approximately RMB31.1 million. The QJ
Disposal was completed on 27 September 2018 with a loss of
approximately HK$4.8 million which represents the derecognition
of a financial asset arising from the acquisition of the subsidiary.

On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition”) with independent third
parties, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to acquire
100% equity interest in ChaoShang Financial Holding Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) at a consideration of
HK$250 million. The Target Group holds licences to carry on
Type 1, 2, 4 and 9 regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and is principally engaged in provision of
Securities brokerage services, asset management services and
investment advisory services. The Acquisition was approved by
the Shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
held on 31 May 2019 but has yet to be completed as at the date
of this report.

Save as disclosed above and the acquisition and disposal of held-
for-trading investments in securities as mentioned below, there
has been no significant acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Group during the year.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year, the Group further invested in held-for-
trading investments in securities in Hong Kong (the “Securities
Investments”) amounting to approximately HK$21.1 million. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group had Securities Investments with
a market value of HK$70.6 million, representing an investment
portfolio of seven listed equities in Hong Kong. The Group
recorded an unrealised fair value gain of approximately HK$5.9
million (2018: loss of approximately HK$16.9 million) in respect

FisEARRE
RAFER - NEEHE —FHE #21,100,00078
TRFBEEEZBEESFRE ([BHFRE]) -
R-ZFB-NF=ZA=+—B AKEFHEME
#)%70,600,0008 T2 FEHIE  BIRNEE
ZEERERERE -RAFERN  AEBEZ
FRAREFERER A A EK 5,900,000
BT (=T — J\F : E1E #916,900,00087T) °
ZEBFREN_E-NF=ZA=1t—HZ&

of the Securities Investments during the year. The details of the  BE#FFIAT -
Securities Investments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:
% of
net assets of
the Group
asat  Unrealised
Fair value 31 March gain/(loss)
as at 2019 on fair value
31 March H&@®  change for Realised
2019 =B-NfF the year  gain/(loss)
Number of % of Costof R=ZB-N% ZA=+-B ZAFEARE  forthe year
Company name Stock code Principal activities shares held shareholdings  acquisiton =A=1-A ZEEFE BRAYE AEEEER
DAER BRORE TEEH FERABEE  KRESW BB ZRRE ARl W&/ (BB Wi/ (B8)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn TiEn Thn Ti#n
1 Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited 404 Building construction, civil engineering, 10,000,000 0.18% 10,000 - - - -
HEERERARLA electrical and mechanical installation,
property development and
investment
BFRE TATR BERRIR.
NERRERE
2 Royal Century Resources Holdings 8125 Provision of design and fitting-out 23,980,000 551% 12,474 4,79 064% (1.398) -
Limited services, design and procurement
CRERBRERLA of fumnishings and related products

services, money lending and sourcing
and merchandising of fine and rare
wines

REZ REBRE RERXHR
REGEREBERRE
HE AREEZE

S AR
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% of
net assets of
the Group
asat  Unrealised
Fair value 31 March gain/(loss)
as at 2019 on fair value
31 March f5&£@®  change for Realised
2019 ZE-hE the year gain/(loss)
Number of % of Costof R=B-h%& =A=+-B AFEARE forthe year
Company name Stock code Principal activities shares held shareholdings ~ acquisiton =A=1-A8 ZEEFE  ERAYR AFECHR
ARER RGRSE FEEE fERGHE BREAL BERAE ZANRE Bl Wi/ (BB) Wi/ (B8)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Fign Fign Tix
China Best Group Holding Limited 370 Alr freight forwarding and brokers for 30,000,000 0.59% 12,660 5820 0.78% 1,080 -
HEEEERERAA airling and shipping companies,
trading of securities and goods,
freight forwarding agent, provision
of finance lease services, finance
consultancy services, money lending
services, securities brokerage
services and futures brokerage
services
FEARMERMBLRALL
FFEERBREE HERE.
RERERERE SRANRY
ERRY BREERER
BERRRHS
Evershing Group Holdings Limited 8022 Trading business, fumniture business 27,000,000 1.50% 9,855 31,59 4.22% 2,700 -
KEEEERERAA mobile application business,
properties development and
investment business, cemetery
business and money lending
business
BHEN GRER FHERRER
% NERERREER
REEBREEEH
Goldway Education Group Limited 8160 Provision of tutoring services 25,692,000 4.92% 15,077 17214 2.30% 4215 (128)
SEAEEBERAA REHBRY
China Water Industry Group Limited 1129 Provision of water supply, Sewage 5,000,000 0.31% 6,900 6,400 0.86% (500) -
PEKEEEERAA treatment and construction services
and exploitation and sale of
renewable energy in the PRC
RETKERIREERBERAER
HEBERREYR
Wing Chi Holdings Limited 6080 Provision of foundation and site 8,100,000 0.87% 494 4779 0.64% (162) -
RBARERAR formation works and machineries
leasing
REMERHETEIERBHAE
Fquity disposed during the year
REEEABHEZ RE
Huiyin Holdings Group Limited 178 (1,793)
ESBREEERAA
Indigo Star Holdings Limited 8373 6,150
EERRERAA
71,907 70,599 5935 4229
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING BY THE GROUP

Competition

The Group competes in the finance leasing business market
with other lenders in the PRC, which may have substantially
greater financial or other resources than the Group. The Group
may also face competition from new entrants to the industry
having business objectives similar to the Group and have greater
financial resources. If the Group fail to maintain its advantages in
cost control, customer base and quality of service, it may lose its
market share in the finance leasing business market.

Business Concentration

A significant portion of the Group's revenues is derived from the
operations in the PRC. Unfavourable events in the country could
disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues, and impact the
valuation of our assets.

Furthermore, the revenue derived from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 69% (2018: 90%) of the total revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2019. If one of the five largest
customers experiencing significant financial difficulty could lower
our revenues and the collectability of the trade receivables.

Financial Risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the
respective risk management measures are set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FEEHGNEERREFARERER

2 337

F
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M EMER - ARBE N AIGEHEREEA
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AR B RBERIT LR AL FPEMR
RGEERKZEE HA e RkEZHEXBER
EXBMENMBMNE-

EBEH
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2019.

COMMITMENTS
Details of the commitments are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed approximately 60
employees. The Group continues to maintain and upgrade the
capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate
and regular training. The Group remunerates its Directors and
employees mainly based on industry practices and individual's
performance and experience. On top of regular remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to
eligible staff by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual’s performance.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to maintain high environmental
standards to ensure sustainable development of its business.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Group complied with the relevant laws,
rules and regulation that have a significant impact on the Group
in relation to its business. The Group has always encouraged
all employees to participate environmental activities to make
contribution to the community.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board believes that good governance is essential to the
maintenance of the Group’s competitiveness and to its healthy
growth. The Company has adopted practices which meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code.
The Company has been in compliance with all code provisions set
out in the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Group and its duties include the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, business strategies, internal control systems,
material transactions, appointment of directors and other
significant operational, financial and legal compliance matters.
The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily affairs of
the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
on behalf of the Group.

Specifically in relation to corporate governance function, the
Board is responsible for the corporate governance function as a
whole, and establishes an internal control group to be responsible
for the specific operation. During the year ended 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report, the Board had performed the
following duties:

1. Developing and reviewing relevant corporate governance
policy and practice of the Company;

2. Reviewing and inspecting continuous professional
development and training of Directors and senior
management;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the

Company being in compliance with the statutory and other
regulatory provisions;
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4. Developing, reviewing and checking code and provision of
conducts applicable to the Directors and employees; and

5. Reviewing that the Company being in compliance with the
CG Code and corporate governance reporting requirements.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the business
and market changes and the Company’s performance, position
and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties. All Directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information in relation to the Group as well as the
advice from and services provided by the company secretary, if
and when required, with a view to ensure that the procedures
are in compliance and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

There are established procedures for Directors upon
reasonable request, to seek independent advice in appropriate
circumstances for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expenses.

Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect
of potential legal actions against the Directors arising out of
corporate activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8
of the CG Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed
and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises 2
executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors
from different businesses and professional fields. The Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
balance of valuable and diversified businesses and professional
expertises, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board for its efficient and effective management of the Group’s
business.

The Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this report has comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua — Chairman

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen — Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Wang Yinggian (resigned on 8 March 2019)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung — Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman of Audit Committee

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced set
of skills and experience which is essential for effective leadership
of the Company. Biographic details of Directors are disclosed in
the “Biographical Details of Directors” section of the Report of the
Directors.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company. The Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies and
organisations and an indication of the time involved. They are
also reminded to notify the Company in a timely manner of any
change of such information.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ") are held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments and
decisions. The key role of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board. In performing her duties, the Chairman shall
ensure that the Board functions effectively in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Chairman also has the responsibility of taking
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company and the Group.

The key role of the CEQO is to be responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and business of the
Group. The duties of the CEO mainly include:

. providing leadership and supervising the effective
management of the Company;,

o monitoring and controlling the financial and operational
performance of various divisions; and

° implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the

Company, setting and implementing objectives and
development plans.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth has appropriate
professional qualifications and related experiences in financial
matters.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of their independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 1 year
which could be terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than 1 month’s written notice.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. The Company
has established a nomination committee to assist the Board
for reviewing its composition, monitoring the appointment and
independence, where applicable, of Directors, and identifying
suitable and qualified individuals to become board members
where necessary.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation but shall be eligible for re-election,
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The directors (including those
appointed for a special term) to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Directors
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities during the year under review.
In addition to their own participation in professional training,
relevant training and reading materials was provided to the
Directors by the Company in the year to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to talents, skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Remuneration of Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are paid fees generally
in line with market practice and taking into consideration the
responsibilities and time spent by Independent non-executive
Directors on the Company's affairs. The remuneration of
Executive Directors is determined by the chairman of the Board in
consultation with the Remuneration Committee after taking into
consideration market trends and responsibilities and performance
of the individual with a view to provide attractive reward to and
retain high performing individuals.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group's consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
applicable Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they
are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.PA.
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
81 to 89.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors comprehensive
meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and
Board Committees are prepared and maintained by the Company
Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees are sent to Directors and Committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.
From time to time, he/she organises seminars on specific topics
of significance and interest and disseminate reference materials
to the Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules
and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in the
Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to shareholders and the
market of information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group's securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the
annual report of the Company.

Annual Report 2019
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman,
all members of the Board have access to the advice and service
of the Company Secretary. Ms. Chan Wai Fung (“Ms. Chan”) has
been appointed as the Company Secretary in February 2017. Ms.
Chan joined the Group since June 2011 and she has day-to-day
knowledge of the Group's affairs. In response to specific enquiries
made, the Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied
with all the required qualifications, experience and training
requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group. Notices
of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings.

For committee meetings, notices are served in accordance
with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms of
reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors before
each Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to senior management whenever necessary.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions from time to time when a board-level decision on a
particular matter was required.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material matter
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company's bye-laws also contain provisions stipulating the
procedures according to which any material matters involving
conflict of interests are to be approved at Board meeting.
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Minutes of all Board meetings, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
secretary of the meetings, and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

During the year, a meeting have been held by the independent
non-executive directors and the Chairman without the executive
directors present (the “Independent Meeting”), 26 Board meetings
and 1 general meeting were also held and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

PMAEESEeR SR BEOHEAERFEEAR

FIEREZFHE YHREIWERERAFRMH
AEENERFEBLIIFATEFRITT KR

BROTEFRLENER ([BLg3R]) LRI
T2REFREHMNRERAEG  SEEZH
RIHEBRNT

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

EHEZEE BETZEE

Independent
Directors General Meeting Board Meeting Meeting
2= BRAE EEEEE BIEE
Ms. Zheng Juhua (P 11 26/26 11
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRAER A 11 26/26 N/A i@ F
Ms. Wang Yinggian FaFa+ 11 23/23 N/A 3@
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 11 26/26 11
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIACEE 11 26/26 11
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE 11 26/26 11
BOARD COMMITTEES EEXEXEE
The Board has established 3 committees, namely the audit ZEE=E€2KkZ =A% 8

committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties. The main duties of
the Audit Committee include the followings:

a)  To review the consolidated financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Group's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

b)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures;

c)  To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectively and the effectiveness of the audit; and

d) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of management, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee performed the work during the year
includes the followings:

o reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company
as to whether they are in compliance with the accounting
standards and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other laws,

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group and approved the risk
management and internal control review manual of the
Group; and

. reviewed the Group's accounting principles and practices,
financial reporting and statutory compliance matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, five meetings have been
held by the Audit Committee to approve the re-appointment of
the auditor, approve the amendment to the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, review the audit service plan for the year
ended 31 March 2018, approve the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and to review
consolidated interim financial statements (including accounting
policies and practices adopted) of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2018 and recommended such consolidated
financial statements to the Board for approval.

In the meeting of the Audit Committee of June 2019, the Audit
committee reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the consolidated financial statements and
other reports for the year ended 31 March 2019 and discuss any
significant audit matters with the Company’s external auditor
and the senior management before recommending them to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Audit Committee
recommended the Board in relation to the re-appointment of Lau
& Au Yeung C.PA. Limited as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuring year at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

ERZBERANFENETZ TERENATR
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The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee atthe REE-_ZT—HhhF=A=+—HILEFERN &
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows: REEGEKBEHEERNBERANT:

Director Name Attendance
EENA e =
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) — ZEHERAE (F/E) 5/5
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SRR E 5/5
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBLCEE 5/5
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of
reference which lay down clearly its authority and duties.
The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

(@ To review, recommend and approve the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management;

(b) To review, recommend and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(c) To determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management;

(d) To review, recommend and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

(e) To establish transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee performed the work during the
year includes the followings:

o reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management;

o reviewed and approved, with delegated responsibility from
the Board, the remuneration package of each Director and
the senior management including bonus payment, pension
right and compensation payable;
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o assessing the performance of executive Directors; and

o approved the appointment letter for each independent non-
executive Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, three meetings have
been held by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee had approved the amendment to the terms of
reference of Remuneration Committee, discussed and reviewed
the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior
management.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

o FHERTEFZRI R

o HWEBRBIUFFNTEFTZRERMF-

REBE-Z-NF=A=+—HILFER %
MEZBecRT=Rgd FHZESCHE
ERFHMEE e ZBERE S wmI R iA
EENEREBABZHFMEE-

RBE-ZT-NF=A=1t—RHILFEAR %
MEZEEERBHESZNBERDT

Director Name Attendance
EENR HE =R
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) RACKRE (£E) 3/3
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 3/3
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE 3/3

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Ms. Zheng Juhua

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference which lay down clearly its authority and duties. The
main duties of the Nomination Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the criteria and procedures of selection of
directors and senior management members, and provide
suggestions;

(b)  To conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of
directors and senior management;

(c) To review the Board diversity policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives set for implementing the said
policy; and

(d To assess the candidates for directors and senior
management and provide the relevant recommendations.

Annual Report 2019

REEZES
REZBEAANRAEFEMATELFNTE
EHERKC DRI

BEREE (ZE)
FEMRE
RACEE
BRELt

REZEBEARTEEARERE BRIIAE

BEMBE - REZEGZIEREBEUT
KI5

(@ WMABMEEFELRaREREABKEZEZ
EREF WiIRHES:

b RBEBzUEREREAEENaSREEA
Bz N

© WBIABEFGNE LB RZBERAT
BTEMEEZENRTEE &

d) EREESMEREEASZEEA YR
HIARHERER



CimRERERBRAA]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e SRR

Nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee include the followings:

o assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors,

o in considering the nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service of the individual as the selection criteria; and

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two meetings have been
held by the Nomination Committee to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

RAZBEERMZERRERF BELGTEE
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee REE-_Z—hNF=A=1+—HBHILFERN &
Director at the meeting during the year ended 31 March 2019 is ZEZEB@&KELFEHNBRMOT:

as follows:

Director Name Attendance
BEENS HER
Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman) BEREE (L/E) 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZEMEAE 2/2
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RBECRE 2/2
Ms. Zheng Juhua B IE L 2/2
INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY AEHEHEE

The Board adopted the Inside Information Policy, which contains
the guidelines to the directors, officers and all relevant employees
(likely possessing the unpublished inside information) of the
Group to ensure that the inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to public in equal and timely manner in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also responsible
for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems with regard to the
objectives of the Group. The established systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted a review, via an appointed
professional firm to perform internal audit function, on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management aspects. The systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management
in a functional bottom up manner, including risk identification,
assessment, evaluation and treatment. The functional areas
across the Group provide input of risks with treatments, which
are appraised and maintained. The risk management system, as
well as the internal control system, are continuous, proactive and
systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems is reviewed by conducting internal audit assignments.
Recommendations for major observations of control weaknesses
from the audits will be provided, so as to resolve material internal
control defects.

Inside Information Policy is in place, which aims to set out

guidelines to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and
service charges of the non-audit services to be performed by
the Company'’s external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.PA. Limited,
and considered that such services have no adverse effect on the
independence of their audit works.

A summary of audit services provided by the external auditor for
the year and their corresponding remunerations is as follows:

BRI ET BN &
BREEQRNGAA R ZINE X BN 2R
BHMEBAARARETFERRGZILE
RRGWRE RAHEERTEZ BT E
BRAEVE-

RAFEE SN BEN IR 2 BEZIRIE B E A
KEMRMEIT

Nature of services Amount
R E 8
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services for the year ended 31 March 2019 720

BE_ZT-NF=-A=T—-BUEFEZEZRK

AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY'S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not
amended its bye-laws.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will takes into account the financial
results, general business conditions and strategies and the
capital requirements of the Group. The Board will also consider
the possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness and the
Company’s shareholders’ interests. The payment of dividend is
also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the
laws of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the Company.
The Company currently does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at the general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
a special general meeting (“SGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene a
SGM must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such SGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
himself/herself/themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Right To Nominate Directors For Election At General
Meetings

Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director must deposit
a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, or
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited (the “Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”), at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The Notice must state clearly
the name of the Shareholder(s) and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a Director,
including the person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned (not the person to be nominated). The Notice must
also be accompanied by a letter of consent signed by the person
nominated to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as a
Director.
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The period for lodgment of the Notice will commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting held for
the election of Directors and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified by the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in compliance with the rules of procedures, the Company
Secretary will ask the nomination committee of the Company
and the Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting proposing such person to be elected
as a Director. The right and procedures to convene a general
meeting and to demand a poll on resolutions at general meetings
by Shareholders are set out in the Company’'s amended bye-
laws headed “General Meetings”, “Notice Of General Meetings”,
“Proceedings At General Meetings” and “Voting”.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

The Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholders concerned, can submit a written
requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the
Shareholders concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2202, 22nd
Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six
weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week in the case of
any other requisition.
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The signatures and the requisition will be verified by the
Company’s branch share registrar. Upon verification that the
request is valid, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
(i) include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the Shareholders, provided that the Shareholders concerned
have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with the Company’s shareholders and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various
channels. The primary communication channel between the
Company and its shareholders is through the publication of its
interim and annual reports.

The Company’s registrars serve the shareholders with respect to
all share registration matters.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to
answer shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll, if necessary. Any relevant
information and documents on proposed resolutions are normally
sent to all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the annual
general meeting.

All shareholders” communications, including interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases are available on the
Company’s website at www.noblecentury.hk. The latest business
developments and core strategies of the Company can also be
found on the website, keeping the communications with investors
open and transparent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public who may contact the Company by
phone on (852) 2598 9868 during normal business hours, by fax at
(852) 2598 9878 or by e-mail at info@noblecentury.hk.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present
its annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
("ESG Report”) to disclose information on the Group's policies,
guidelines, actions and performance on the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") issues.

This ESG Report covers the reporting period from 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”) and it has been prepared
in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide (the "Guide”)
provided in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Guide encourages a
listing company to identify and disclose ESG information that is
material and relevant to both its business and its stakeholders.

The Group operates its business through four business segments,
including vessel chartering business, trading business, money
lending and factoring business and finance leasing business
in Hong Kong and the PRC. There is no significant change in
the scope of this ESG Report and it covers our operations in
Hong Kong and the PRC that has contributed our Group's entire
turnover in the Reporting Period.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND APPROACH
TO ESG STRATEGY AND REPORTING

Our ESG strategy is developed for aligning the Group's philosophy
and objectives of creating long-term value for our stakeholders.
This Report is prepared by the our ESG working group, which
consists of external ESG advisor, managers of major departments
in Hong Kong and the general manager in the PRC, and is led
by the financial controller in Hong Kong. The working group
is responsible for formulating ESG policies and initiatives and
embedding the ESG principles in each department of the Group,
and it makes sure the Group’'s ESG objectives are delivered.
The Board sets out ESG objectives and direction for the Group
and oversees the ESG development and it co-ordinates with the
responsible financial controller for delegating ESG responsibilities
to the ESG working group.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its business, as well as providing support to environmental
protection and the communities in which it operates. We believe
that stakeholders’ participation is critical in the sustainable
development and value creation for our Group. The stakeholder
engagement is an important process to understand and
identify the material ESG issues in our operations. With regular
communications with our key stakeholders through different
channels, such as meetings, emails, telephone, interviews etc.,
we listen and collect their views and interests and understand
their expectations. In the stakeholder engagement process,
we identify opportunities and challenges, and also develop
business development strategies to improve our corporate social
responsibilities. The stakeholder engagement is a continuous
process and the key stakeholders of the Group, that the
shareholders, investors, management and staff are internal
stakeholders and whereas the others are external stakeholders,
are identified in the Reporting Period and illustrated below.
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Our ESG framework governs how our objectives are translated
into sustainability performance. In the stakeholder engagement
process, we identify key stakeholders and get understanding
on their expectations. Materiality assessment is carried out by
plotting a matrix of relevance and importance to get an insight
into the relative importance of specific ESG issues for our
stakeholders. Through the assessment result, we understand
and identify the material ESG issues and the respective risks
associated in our operations. Our decision process can prioritise
those relevant and important issues and focus on these issues in
long term planning. Adequate manpower and financial resources
are ensured to meet the strategic plans. Policies should be
enhanced and improved where they are inadequate to meet the
ESG objectives. The ESG working Group formulates ESG initiatives
and arranges activities for achieving the ESG objectives, and
ensure the initiatives and practices are properly executed. ESG
data are accumulated continuously and are analysed annually for
evaluation of sustainability performance.
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In this ESG report, we have adopted the reporting principles as
proposed in the Guide for materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency to incorporate more relevant contents and to present
information in a way that can meet better expectation of our
stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please share your views with us via email at
info@noblecentury.hk.

CONTRIBUTION TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
Environmental Protection

We are aware of our social responsibilities for environmental
protection and strive for minimising the adverse impact of our
operations on the environment. We believe that contributions
from our staff can help to reduce the environmental impact
resulting from our business activities. To enhance the
environmental awareness of our staff, suppliers and other
stakeholders, we have established appropriate policies and
procedures to reduce emissions, to use the resources efficiently
and to use the natural resources properly.

Emissions

Trading, money lending, factoring and finance leasing
business segments

The trading, money lending, factoring and finance leasing
businesses accounted for about 97% of the Group's total turnover
in this financial year. The fuel used by our motor vehicles and
the electricity consumption for our offices in Hong Kong and the
PRC are the main sources of air emissions and greenhouse gas
("GHG") emissions for the operations of these business segments.
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In the Reporting Period, we generated 16.5 kg of nitrogen oxides
(NOx), 0.4 kg of sulpfur oxides (SOx) and 1.2 kg of particulate
matter (PM) from the use of our motor vehicles. In addition, our
motor vehicles had also generated 69.4 tonnes of CO2 equivalent
("CO2¢") GHG emissions. Due to the growth of the money lending,
factoring and finance leasing businesses, the use of motor
vehicles and hence the fuel consumption for business purpose
had been increased. As the result, the air emissions of NOx and
PM had increased by about 25%, and SOx by 23%, while the GHG
emissions of CO2e had increased by about 23% as compared to
last year.

The consumption of electricity for our offices in Hong Kong and
the PRC is another source of GHG emissions of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, we ceased to provide electricity and water
supply to our office tenant in the PRC. As the result, our electricity
consumption in the PRC was significantly reduced by more than
40%. Total GHG emissions from electricity consumption of the
Group for the current year was reduced by 31% to 47 tonnes of
CO2-.

In order to reduce the negative impact to the environment, we
have set out clear policies to minimise the air emissions and
GHG emissions. We closely monitor the travel logs and fuel
consumption of our motor vehicles to avoid unnecessary usage
of fuel. Our vehicles are properly maintained to keep up the fuel
efficiency. On the other hand, we have taken various measures
to monitor the electricity consumption and to improve energy
efficiency. Our staff are responsible for monitoring the usage of
office equipment. Computers and printers not to be used for
a long time are required to turn off. Monitors will be turned off
when the computers are in standby mode. Air conditioners are
set at reasonable temperature for saving energy. In our PRC office,
air conditioners are turned on only when temperature is high in
summer time and filters of air conditioners are regularly cleaned
to improve cooling efficiency. The staff who leaves when the
office is closed is responsible for checking and ensuring that all
lighting, air conditioning and power, etc. are turned off.
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Although the amount of indirect GHG emissions from paper
wastes and air business travels are insignificant, we have taken
certain measures to reduce usage of paper and the number of air
business travels. We encourage our staff to reduce printing and
photocopying by using electronic documents instead of paper
copies. Double-side printing and reuse of waste paper for draft
documents are recommended. Electronics communications,
such as emails and conference calls etc., are also encouraged to
reduce not only paper usage, but also air business travel. Our staff
are recommended to arrange nearby customer and supplier visits
in one trip to reduce the number of air business travels.

In the normal course of our operations, we do not produce any
hazardous waste. Non-hazardous wastes produced from our
offices are paper waste and office supplies waste. However, the
non-hazardous wastes for the Reporting Period were almost
doubled as compared with last year due to the refurbishment
of our PRC office during the year, that more construction and
demolition wastes were produced. As the result, a total of 6.9
tonnes of non-hazardous waste was produced and the intensity
of non-hazardous waste produced was 0.12 tonnes per staff
during the Reporting Period.
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To reduce waste, we encourage reusing and recycling materials
in our offices. Single-sided printed paper and old envelopes are
reused. Waste separation at source is implemented to facilitate
recycling of waste paper, plastic bottles and metal cans and to
reduce general waste. Used toner cartridges are collected by
suppliers for recycling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, including but not limited to the “Waste
Disposal Ordinance”, “Air Pollution Ordinance”, and “Water
Pollution Control Ordinance”, that would have a significant impact
on the Group.
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Vessel chartering business

The Group currently owns a multi-purpose deck cargo vessel,
which registered in the PRC, mainly for carriage of construction
materials and wastes in the PRC and Southeast Region. We
have hired a shipping agent (the “Agent”) to manage the daily
operations of the vessel and to act on our behalf to negotiate with
vessel charterers. The Agent has the responsibility to ensure that
our vessel is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
for minimising negative impacts to the environment.

Under the management of the Agent, our vessel has complied
with the International Management Code for the Safe Operations
of Ships and for Pollution Prevention (the “ISM Code”). The ISM
Code’s objective is to ensure safety in maritime traffic, preventing
injuries and deaths to persons, and preventing damage to the
environment, especially the maritime environment. Our vessel
has met the requirements of the ISM code and we have obtained
the safety management certificate and document of compliance
issued by the Maritime Bureau of the PRC.

During the operations of the vessel, non-hazardous wastes
generated on the vessel are responsible by the Agent that include
waste water, plastics, food waste, domestic waste, cooking
oil, operational waste and cargo residues, etc. and such non-
hazardous wastes are not directly under our management. Our
vessel has strictly complied with the International Convention
for the Prevention of Pollutions from Ships (“"MARPOL"). MARPOL
regulates emission of all forms of pollutants by vessels including
oil, sewage, garbage and gas. A garbage management plan has
been set up in accordance with the guidelines of International
Maritime Organization (“IMO") and it sets out guidelines and
procedures for the collection, storage, processing and disposal of
garbage. The vessel does not directly produce hazardous waste.

The vessel is also in compliance with the Regulations of the
PRC for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships and the Marine
Environment Protection Law of the PRC for discharging oils, oily
mixtures, wastes and other toxic substances. In addition, our
vessel has been awarded pollution prevention certificate in the
PRC. The pollutants discharged by the vessel are in compliance
with the Discharge Standard of China. The vessel has also
obtained verifications and certificates relating to water and oil
pollution issued by Maritime Bureau of the PRC.

Annual Report 2019

MEEREY

AEEBHE —HERPEEMNZAEFR
S TERERTBEMREDREHEE
PR R BERY - RIPIRBE — R MR ([HRIE])
BEMMN A ESE WRRKMEMHAE
AR - ROIEE B ERARRMIA M ETIEE
EOIROER  AEEREHRENEMTZE -

EREMNEET  HMAOMACSET [EER K
frz 2L @M )5 REERA] (TISMR
A1) - ISMRRIB B RRREE LXBLE B
IEABBT S IEHRRE (LEREFIRE)
BB - LM A ISMBRRINRE - B
BHAEBSETEEERELNLZEERZENR
B

PR EERRED MHEENESEYHAR
BESE BEEK BB BH £EFEY R
Bl EEEYREREDS  WHREEEY
WIEEBRMEE - BRMOMMERETH
BEAEARIS 2B A 2 %) (TMARPOL | ) » MARPOL
REMMBERSEREANSEMRERR 5
KB MARRE - ARNRQ B D IRIEEER GEH
& (MO 1) mtes|hI T BB RS EF &
BWE FEF RENMEEEYNES RIEF -
MM EEEEEEEEY-

2R TR ST [ AR AABIPT LA AR5 2
BEEIR RG] A [ EARKMBEIEFIRR
ReEx ] BRABEIURE MRS Y BEERYM
HBESWENBE N BRFINMAEE
BB L5 RES MM HS R T
AR EONHERRE - ZMMITRSHTEEE
REONBANSRIASROZERES -



CimRERERBRAA]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
FREE 3 R iRl

PRAATE & AR - A AFEA B B L HEMEM £
HREDERE  RAKE 2B Am - RNEEE
BB BB R MR R EMMAAEAE
EREAZEMREER DREERELAE
BEREER - NS A - MM HIRSE
I 45K BHE SRR A 1S - Rt - IRRHRIE EE £ 1)
BEREBHRERS  F1NMIAE_A(LREE
HOBEIR o

During the vessel charter period, the vessel charterer is
responsible for the fuel consumption, fresh water and all daily
supplies for the vessel. The Group is only responsible for the
fuel consumption for delivering the vessel from our berth to the
port designated by the vessel charterer and does not directly
generate a large amount of GHG emissions. During the Reporting
Period, the vessel was out of order and was returned to shipyard
for repairs. As such the GHG emissions from combustion of fuel
decreased and amounted to 111.1 tonnes of COz-e emissions.

RBEHA AEBRZRBBEMMEERE
REETT EHDER BB ROEM -

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not breached any
relevant law, rule and regulation concerning environmental
protection for the vessel operations.

2019 2018

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TEEMISE —E-NEF —E-)N\F
AIR EMISSIONS RN kg A kg AT
— Nitrogen Oxides (“NOx") —R&Em ([a&|!m]) 16.51 13.18

— Sulphur Oxides (“SOx") —wmEl ([FE1?m]) 0.38 0.31

— Particulate Matter (“PM") —BERNT ([BFRT]) 1.22 0.97
GHG EMISSIONS BERBEEEN tonnes COze tonnes COze

B_ERER
FEN  BWMARREELN
BEHER 69.3 56.3
HEN  MMELENEERHER

W ikE=E
Scope 1: direct emissions from
combustion of vehicle fuel
Scope 1: direct emissions from

combustion of vessel
Scope 2: indirect emissions from HE2 : IMNEE NHEEHER

purchased electricity 47.2 68.5
Scope 3: other indirect emissions from #E3 - BEA R B RITH

111.1 148.1

paper waste & business air travel H b E 5 BER 11.5 9.7
Total GHG Emissions B EREH AR E 239.1 282.6

Trading, money lending, factoring &
finance leasing business — GHG Intensity
(tonnes CO2e/average no. of employees)

Vessel chartering business — GHG Intensity
(tonnes CO2¢/n0. of voyage)

25 B -REK®MEAR
BEBK - RERBETE
(B-—StmES
EEFH9E) 2.1

WA E XK R ERES
(B —FhirEs
RN 55.6

it

1.9

24.7

b T =
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Use of Resources

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of
environment protection awareness and to operating our business
in a safe and environmental friendly manner. We encourage
our staff to make contributions to environmental protection by
efficient use of resources and also resources conservation. We
have set out policies on reducing the use of resources in the
staff handbook. Measures taken to save energy are mentioned in
previous section “Emissions”. We also post notices at prominent
places to remind our staff to save water.

In the Reporting Period, the total electricity consumption in
our offices was significantly reduced by 34% and the electricity
consumption intensity was also reduced by 20%, mainly due to
ceasing in provision of electricity to our PRC office tenant. For the
same reason, the amount of water consumption by our offices
was significantly reduced to 120m?® as compared to 910m? of
last year. The Group's vehicles and the vessel consumed a total
of 60,000 litres of fuel, which was 12% less than last year. The
Group does not have any issue in sourcing water that is fit for the
business purpose. Due to our business nature, the Group does
not require any packaging material.

&IRF A
AEEHBHEFSRENRERER UARE
BRRODACLERS - RAOISEER SRR
WER RERE—2H -BITFMARER
DEREFERBOR » b EX THRMY) | —&iFr
R ERREFR IESN - AT B AREE SR BL /8 ¥ - 18
B8 TRk

RBERAR AEENRLAEREEREZ R
34% FEEEZE IR NEKI20% EE AT LE
AMEMFEBRAENEFPREES - ERF—
FRE KPR AERKERE TBRE1207 7
KB FFELBRN0MT K REBRTER
it 8 O 48 A B H #E 8 60,0001 » b R
D #12% o AN 5 B 0 SR ER S A5 8 A /KR £ 30 4
TAEE - ERRPINEBEEE  AEETH
ZEMBEMFL e

2019 2018
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FTEEHWIEE —E-AEF —E-N\F
ENERGY CONSUMPTION BEFHER
Direct energy consumption — consumption of fuel & 88 R SEFE & — R EE IRk
(vehicles) (litres) (HE#|) (RF) 25,600 20,800
Direct energy intensity (litres/average no. of BEERRTE
employees) (RF/REFHE) 430 289
Direct energy consumption — consumption of fuel B LR EFEE — RIERE
(vessel) (litres) (ffe) (&) 34,300 47,200
Direct energy intensity (litres/no. of voyage) BHEGEREE
(DF /WX 17,150 7,867
Indirect energy consumption — electricity MR EREE-B N EES
consumption (kwh) (FEE) 77,000 117,100
Indirect energy intensity — electricity consumption BIZERBE -5 ERES
(kwh/average no. of employees) (FEEEEFHE) 1,294 1,626
WATER CONSUMPTION AKE m3 3 75 3K m3 3775 K
Water consumption k= 120 910
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group realises that we are liable to minimise the negative
impacts to the environment due to our vessel's operations.
To establish environmental friendly practices for our vessel,
policies and procedures related to environmental protection,
which complies with applicable rules and regulations, codes and
guidelines and standards recommended by IMO have been laid
down in the Safety Management Manual. Our vessel has obtained
safety management certificate, document of compliance,
verifications and certificates relating to prevention of air pollution,
water pollution and oil pollution, issued by the Maritime Bureau of
the PRC. The Group and the Agent continue to pay close attention
to the development of environment regulations to ensure the
compliance of all applicable environment regulations in our vessel
operations. We are committed to improve our operations for
better environmental preservation.

Although the Group’s other business segments have little
impact on the environment and natural resources, the Group
endeavours to minimise negative environmental impacts of our
operations and to promote sustainable development for the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations in respect of the
environment and natural resources.

CARING OUR TALENTS

Employment

Our talents are the most important assets for the long-term
development of the Group. We are committed to providing
an equal working environment for our staff. Being an equal-
opportunity employer, our staff will have equal opportunities
and their employment, remuneration and promotions will not
be affected by their age, gender, race, colour, sexual orientation,
disability or martial status.

For the trading, money lending, factoring and finance leasing
businesses, the Group’s employment in Hong Kong is governed
by the Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, as well as the Minimum Wage Ordinance. In the PRC,
the staff employment is governed by the Labour Law and the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC. Our policies relating to the
recruitment and promotion, development and training, working
hours, rest periods, other benefits and welfare, compensation
and dismissal, equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination,
etc, are set out in the Staff Handbook and Human Resources
Management Manual.
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The Group’s remuneration policy aims to attract and retain
our talents. We offer competitive salary in line with the market
rate and commensurate with individual qualification, working
experience and performance. Our talents are also rewarded by
annual salary increment and discretionary bonus based on the
Group's performance and individual performance.

For our vessel chartering business, the Agent is responsible for
the recruitment and management of the crew members of the
vessel in the PRC. The employment of the crew members is
subject to the Maritime Labour Convention 2006, the Regulations
of the PRC on Seafarers, the Labour Law and the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC. For safeguarding the interests and rights of
our crew members, policies relating to the crew members’
employment terms, qualifications, certificates, working hours,
accommodation, food, recreation facilities, health care, insurance
and wages are set in accordance with the Regulations of the PRC
on Seafarers and other relevant regulations in the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with all
laws and regulation in Hong Kong and the PRC relating to the
employment of our talents.

Health and Safety

We care about our staff and crew members and endeavour to
provide a safe and pleasant working environment for them. We
place great emphasis on the health and occupational safety of all
staff, especially for our crew members.

For the vessel operations, our first priority is to ensure the
safety of our crew members. Our Agent has established and
implemented a safety management system to ensure the safety
of the vessel. The safety management system is in compliance
with the ISM Code and details all the important policies, practices
and procedures in order to ensure safe functioning of the vessel
at the sea. All the policies and procedures relating to safety
regulations, safety measures, maintenance and operational
requirements for preventing any work accidents are set out in
the Safety Management Manual. Regular meetings on vessel
safety are arranged for the crew members to discuss the
implementation of safety policies, to report any non-conformity
or accident of the safety management and to raise the safety
awareness.
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Our vessel must comply with the safety standards set out in
the Regulations Governing Minimum Safe Manning Ships of the
PRC and the International Convention for the Safety of Life at
Sea. Sufficient crew members are required to work at the vessel
during voyages. Our Agent also has to ensure that qualified crew
members are recruited and that crew members on board are
trained and certificated in accordance with the International
Convention on Standards of Training and Certification and
Watchkeeping for Seafarers (STCW Convention) and other
relevant regulations and rules. In addition, all crew members
are required to have health certificates before going on board.
Regular health checks are arranged for our crew members to
prevent occupational disease.

For our offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, we need to comply
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the Labour Law of the PRC to ensure the safety and health
of our staff at work. Our offices have been equipped with all
the required safety equipment and facilities, in particular for fire
safety, which have passed the government safety inspections.
We also require staff at head office to participate in the fire drill
of the office building. In our offices, we implemented safety
policies and measures to provide a healthy environment in the
workplace, such as prohibition of smoking in the offices, regular
office cleaning, providing air purifiers at the workplace to improve
indoor air quality, etc.

Besides providing safe and healthy workplace, we strive to
create harmonious working environment for our talents to
help their development and enhance their performance. Staff
social functions are held regularly to promote staff loyalty and
to enhance their teamwork spirit. Annual dinner is one of the
important social events to express our appreciation to our talents
for their efforts in the past year. We also sponsored our staff to
participate in long run competitions and encouraged them to
have work-life balance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not incurred any
serious work injury or accident.
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Development and Training

We care about the development of our staff and believe that their
job competency can be enhanced through training. Adequate
training can equip our talents with the necessary knowledge and
skills relevant to their work and can cope with the development of
the Group.

For our vessel chartering business, our crew members are
required to complete STCW training courses. Our Agent also
provides training courses on the skills and knowhow of the vessel
operations, inspection and maintenance of equipment, and on
subjects relating to life protection, such as life-saving, fire safety,
and using of fire-fighting equipment. The Agent keeps detailed
records of each training course about the dates, name of trainees
and trainers, and the course content to ensure that every crew
member has adequate training to deal with various situations in
the vessel operations.

For the trading, money lending, factoring and finance leasing
businesses, “position-taking training” is provided to our new staff
for assisting them to understand the Group and to adapt easier
for the new position. The training includes topics on the Group's
background, structure, regulations, positions and responsibilities,
working skills, and career development plan etc. The on-the-job
and specific trainings are also provided to staff for enhancing
their job competence and to benefit their career advancement.
With the approval of the management, we subsidise our staff to
attend job-related training courses. During the Reporting Period,
our staff attended continuous professional training courses to
maintain and enhance their technical knowledge and professional
skills.

Annual Report 2019
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UPHOLDING OTHER SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

Labour Standards

We recognize that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights and the protocol of international
labour conventions, and we agree they pose a threat to
sustainable social and economic development. Therefore we
strictly abide the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and the
Labour Law and Labour Contract Law in the PRC for this issue.

The Group prohibits employment of child labour and will carry out
examination of the applicant’s age during the recruitment stage.
We would strictly follow the employment contracts and would
not prejudice the employment relationship in any way between
the staff and the Group, such as detaining a deposit, forcing to
work against their will under any kind of threat. Our staff have the
right to terminate their employment contracts as long as it is in
compliance with the relevant laws and the Group policies. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has not experienced any case on
child labour and forced labour.

Anti-corruption

We believe that compliance with the principles of integrity and
fairess can create a clean and fair business environment and set
a solid foundation for sustainable development of our business.
All directors and staff in Hong Kong are regulated by Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Hong Kong). Staff working in PRC must
also comply with local legislation to prevent bribery. Our anti-
corruption policies and code of conduct are put in our Staff
Handbook to ensure that all directors and staff understand and
strictly comply with our ethical and probity requirements. We also
have policies and procedures for our staff, business partners and
other related parties to report suspected or actual corruption,
fraud, dishonest practices and any similar matters in good faith.
All reported cases will be investigated thoroughly and appropriate
corrective or disciplinary measures will be taken based on the
findings.
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For our money lending business in Hong Kong, we strictly
comply with all applicable anti-money laundering laws and
regulations in Hong Kong including the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance and Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders issued
by the Registrar of Money Lenders. We have established and
implemented policies and procedures on risk assessment,
customer due diligence measures, on-going monitoring of
customers, suspicious transactions reporting, record keeping and
staff training.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that
would have significant impact on the Group.

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS AND
PRODUCTS

Supply Chain Management and Our Products

The Group is trading seafood, frozen meat and electronics
products in the PRC. Supply chain management is vital to the
sustainable operations in our trading business. We have laid down
procedures and guidelines for procuring products and for the
selection of suppliers in a fair and equitable manner. We select
suppliers based on the safety, quality, business reputation, price
and delivery arrangement to ensure that all products sourced
by us are safe and reliable. Moreover, we have implemented
sustainable practices in our supply chain activities that we have
to ensure our suppliers” production or operations are complied
with their local relevant laws and regulations, in particular for
the issues of environment, labour, health and safety. Standard
policies and procedures for the procurement of products are
established to ensure that quality products are purchased from
qualified suppliers. To ensure product quality, products importing
to the PRC are subjected to our quality assurance check.
Where possible, we would insist to inspect and examine the
merchandises before confirming the purchase.
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For our vessel operations, the Agent is our most important
business partner. As a company committed to sustainability and
protecting the environment, we actively seek to work with an
Agent who shares the same value with us and operates on the
principles of sustainable development. Our Agent is responsible
for ensuring that the procurement of supplies and repair
services is from qualified and responsible suppliers. The Group
closely monitors the quality and standard of purchases with the
crew members of the vessel and the Agent to ensure that the
procurements are in line with the Group's sustainability policies.

Commitment to Our Customers

We value our customers and are committed to reinforcing
our relationships by continuously improving the quality of our
products and the customer experience. Policies and procedures
are in place to ensure that all customer complaints or concerns
are addressed to by our relevant departments in a timely manner.

Our money lending, factoring and finance leasing business offer
a variety of loan products to individuals and corporates in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. We are a licensed money lender in Hong
Kong and as such, our money lending business is governed by
the Money Lenders Ordinance (“MLQO") in Hong Kong. We strictly
comply with all forms and procedures prescribed under the
provisions of MLO.

To ensure the quality of our trade products, we endeavour
to choose reputable partners with reliable track records and
integrity for our trading business. In addition, we have stringent
requirement on our suppliers and have implemented quality
assurance procedures to secure the high quality and safety
standard of our products.

For our vessel chartering business, our Agent is responsible
for communicating with the charterers to understand their
requirements on the voyage. For the safety of voyages and the
satisfaction of the charterers, we cooperate with the Agent to
ensure that the facilities of the vessel and the qualification and
experience of our crew members meet the requirements of the
charterers. Our management visits the vessel and has meetings
with the crew members regularly to ensure that we are providing
quality services to our customers.
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We realise that preserving customer data privacy is important
for our business. We take great precaution to ensure the
confidentiality of data collected from our customers and
generated from our transactions. We have implemented various
measures to prevent unauthorised or accidental access,
processing, or leakage of data. During the Reporting Period, we
strictly complied with the relevant provisions of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters of our products and services provided that have a
significant impact on us.

CARING OUR COMMUNITY

Community Investment

The Group strives to support and contribute to our community
through corporate philanthropy and staff volunteerism. We
nurture the corporate culture and practices in daily work
life to enhance the awareness of our staff in the social and
environmental issues and to help the development of caring,
sympathy and personal integrity. Our staff are encouraged
to participate in community activities to care about the local
community and the environment and to help others in need.

During the Reporting Period, to promote our corporate social
responsibilities, our staff in Hong Kong actively involved in various
donation and recycling activities for making contribution to our
society. We have participated in food and moon cake donation
campaigns for the benefits of the elderly and the needy. We
have also taken part in red packet and moon cake box recycling
activities to help reducing waste at source. We recognize the
importance of blood donation for saving lives of needy persons
in the society and hope to make blood donation a lifelong habit
for our staff. We encourage our staff to give blood during the
year and participation in blood donation campaign has become a
regular event for our staff.

We are committed to be a responsible corporate citizen and will
continue to support and contribute our communities and the
environment by exploring more channels for allowing our staff to
participate.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CHECKLIST

ASPECTS
Em

BIXBRE HTeRERBREES

DESCRIPTION PAGE REF
Eiipus ¥

A. Environmental
A RE

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1 BB Y
General Disclosure
— R EE

KPI A1.1
A2 4B IR IE AT
KPI A1.2

B R AE IR IRA1.2

KPIA1.3

B 48 IR 1TA1.3

KPIA1.4

FRRAE IR IRALA

KPIA1.5

8 52 48 IR TEA15
KPI A1.6

PR AR IR IRALS

Information on: 43-47
BRABERMAEREBHEN  F/KRIHEEES AENEEE
BYNELESH:

S

the policies; and
126

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

() BEBFHETAFTERZENEBEELAONER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 47
PEri e $A R AR A B R B -
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where 47
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

mERBAENE (ANEEE) R (EfR) %E (NAEES
B GHERMETHE) ©

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FEABEREYBEE (UAMTE) R
(ER)ZE (MASESEMN FHERETE) °

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 45
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FrEEEEEEYesE (UEEE) R (ER) BE (A
ER2EN SERETE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and 43-47
results achieved.

OB EE R ENREIERAERR-

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 45
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

MR AERBEEREEMN A
BIEEESNRERFIEKR-

Not applicable
for disclosure

TERAREE

—FNEER
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ASPECTS DESCRIPTION PAGE REF

B it BY

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 - EREH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 48
water and other raw materials.

—RRIEER BRUERAER (BIEEIR KR EADRME) MBS o

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 48
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in ‘000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FRERIEIRA2.1 REREISMEE R, SEEEE (WNE - [eoh) BFEE (U
FEFERAE)NBE (NAGES S -
BIEREE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 48
production volume, per facility).

FRENIEIEA22 BFEKEREE (MASGESESEMN BEREFE)

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and 48
results achieved.

R A BIBIEA2.3 A gE R AR R B R PTIS AR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 48
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

FAREBUEIEA2.4 i SKEUE KR LRI B W R RE - A IR A Kz 5T 2l
KEF1GAR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Not applicable
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. for disclosure

B A BIBIEA2.5 R GFTABEMBNRE ( UETE) & THEAREE
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[Em it EH

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEA3 RERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 49
environment and natural resources.

—RIEE WARBEITAHRBERRAERENERTZERNBER -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 49
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

B SR AB IR IRAS B EBEHERERARERNERTE R
EERNMEREAEZEN{TE-

B. Social

B. #®

Employment and Labour Practices

EBEREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1:1EE

General Disclosure Information on: 49-50

—MREE EBEHFNRFRE BELEA TESE BRE FEKg -

Z It~ RIS IA R LA 1508 MA@ Il -

S

the policies; and
(@ BE: &k

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

() BFHBITABERZENEEEERROINER -

—FAEER
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ASPECTS DESCRIPTION PAGE REF
[Em it EH
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BEB2 ZEHEZRE
General Disclosure Information on: 50-51
—RRIEER FARELZ2TIERRERBEEHEIBENBEN:
(@ the policies; and
@ mBE: Rk
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
() BFHBOTABERZENEEEEZRROINER -
Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3 : #ERIEI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 52
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
—MREE BRARTHE B BT TVERE B0 A58 R R A o IBUR - it 45 51
EEIN
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BHEB4 : & ITX8|
General Disclosure Information on: 53

—REE
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[Em R BE
Operating Practices
EEES
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEEBS : tEEHEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 54-55
supply chain.
—MEE EEHERMNIRSE R ERBECE-
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BEB6  EmERE
General Disclosure Information on: 54-55
—MREE BRMRHERNBRBNERERZ Y B SELEAAER
FLEE =B LA R AR AR
(@ the policies; and
@ HE: &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
() BFHBTAGEAZENHELZEZRATINER
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: 53-54

—RWE

BRAPT LB 3R - BREF RO R ER -

<

)

o
A

the policies; and
B &

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BTHETAREATZENEREEZRBROINER -
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Em| i pu ¥
Ccommunity

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
EHBS : tE&RE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 56
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
— MR BRANMTESERTREEMELERFENBREERED
GE R & TR ABUR
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There was no significant
changes in nature of Group's principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the sections “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 4 to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part
of this directors’ report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set forth in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment property, property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set forth in notes 14 and 13 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS
No charitable donations has been made by the Group during the

year (2018: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set forth in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share options scheme below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2013 and the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission to
deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”) on 3 September 2013, the Company
adopted the Share Option Scheme in replacement of a share
option scheme adopted on 25 March 2003 which had been
expired on 24 March 2013.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 2 September 2013, unless otherwise terminated.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the directors, employees and other participants of the
Company and the Group.

The exercise price, vesting period, exercisable period and the
number of shares subject to each option will be determined by
the Board at the time of grant. No option has been granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 94 and in note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE RATZA DK
COMPANY
The Company's reserve was as follows: KREl 2 BT
2019 2018
—®-nE T )\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contributed surplus BEHRG 34,178 34,178
Accumulated losses ZETEE (144,312) (84,837)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(@ the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the Company would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 216 of the
annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Ms. Wang Yinggian (Resigned on 8 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws and
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zheng
Juhua and Mr. Man Kwok Leung will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
31 March 2019 or at any time during the year then ended.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Directors had an interest in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

EEREFRB2ER

REBEFEAREEARARERH EFNER
SEEBERIMEBARF LT EENEF
ZAERER (BRAKREEBIN) FEERE
MR A FE8N0RA T WM R T

Director Name of company Nature of business  Nature of interests

Es NGIE=E Enng ERME

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited Money lending Chairman and executive

BRERLE ("Royal Century”) and its subsidiaries business director of Royal Century
CEERERARAR (CEER] R EEX CRERCERFRATES

HINE LA

Ms. Wang Yinggian
FRETFLL

Fortunes United International Leasing
Co., Ltd (“Fortunes United”)

BhkeEERmEEERRAR
(I&mial)

China Best Group Holding Limited
(“China Best") and its subsidiaries
BESEBEZERARAR ([EE]) R

BB AR

Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth

FEERE

DeTai New Energy Group Limited (“DeTai")
and its subsidiaries

REMERERARAR ([1EF]) X
Hff B A A

As the board of Directors (the “Board”) is independent to the
boards of the above mentioned companies, the Group is capable
of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length,
from the business of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions as set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which
were exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the
Directors as determined pursuant to the service contracts/letters
of appointment entered into between the Directors and the
Group were connected transactions which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have confirmed that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and
their associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register as required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interest in the Company:

Name of director Number of shares

CimRERERBRAA]
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MARBWT:

EERARNF 2B

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding Capacity

BEENA REE BRESLNBEILE 52
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 834,767,140 shares 22.68% Interest of the controlled
B IE L (Note) corporations
41 2 834,767,1400% XN AR
(HI5E)

—FNEER
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Note: 834,767,140 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited (“Superb
Smart”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua,
the executive Director and chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Ms.
Zheng Juhua is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interested or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section on
page 65 in this annual report and note 27(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as it is known by or otherwise
notified by any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons who had 5% or
more interests in the following long positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO or were entitled to exercise,
or control the exercise of, 10% or more of the voting power at
any general meeting of the Company (the “Voting Entitlements”)
(i.e. within the meaning of substantial shareholders of the Listing
Rules) were as follows:

Name of substantial

shareholder Number of shares

CimRERERBRAA]

FTERRRAMATARSG RIBEAR
BzEBERKR

RZFB-NF=ZA=1+—8 BARAEMAE
EXSRITHRABMBARBRERANEG BT
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding Capacity

FTERRER R EE RESAEILE F5
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 834,767,140 shares 22.68% Interest of the controlled
BEGEL+ (Notes (i) corporations
4 &834,767 1408% RN
(F3EG))

Superb Smart Limited Long position 834,767,140 shares
(Notes (i)

17 5834,767,1400% (Bt () )

Dragon Mind Long position 341,132,000 shares
Holdings Limited (Note (ii))
ERERAR AR 71 2341,132,0008% (B 5E(i) )

Managecorp Limited Long position 341,132,000 shares
(Note (ii))

41 72°341,132,000/% (B 7 (i) )

Mr. Zhang Lirui
ML

Long position 341,132,000 shares
(Note (ii))
4 £341,132,0008% ( Bt #Ei))

Sea Venture Investments Long position 304,864,860 shares
Limited (Note (iii))
45 2:304,864,8608% A% 12 ( BT = iii) )
Short position 304,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))
% 2 304,864,8600% B 11 (MY 7 (i) )

China Construction
Bank Corporation

Long position 304,864,860 shares
(Note (iii))

PR IRTTAR D 41 B304,864,8600% f& 15 ( B 7 (iii) )
BERAA Short position 304,864,860 shares

(Note (iii)
% B304,864, 860 A% 17 ( B £ i) )

22.68% Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner
BEaa A

9.26%

9.26% Trustee
FEA

9.26% Founder of a
discretionary trust

BB EFERIIA

Beneficial owner
BEoEE A

8.28%

Beneficial owner
BEmEE A

8.28%

8.28% Interest of controlled
corporations

TN AR

Interest of controlled
corporations

SR ZYNCIE F

8.28%

—FAEER
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Name of substantial

Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
FTERRHR R4 EE RESABEILE 52
CCB International Group Long position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
Holdings Limited (Note (iii) corporations
EITEIRR SR E 2 i 17 £304,864,8608% A 7 (B 7% (iii) ) ER NGy
BRAT] Short position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii)) corporations
B8 304,864,8600% J 1 (M 7)) RN
CCB Financial Holdings  Long position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
Limited (Note (iii)) corporations
BITSRUERBRAT 472304,864,8600% A% 7 (B =E(iii) ) SN FE R
Short position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii) corporations
% B 304,864,8600% f% 17 ( B & (i) ) SR Za/NSI -
CCB International Long position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Holdings) Limited (Note (iii)) corporations
EEIRBIRR (=A%) 17 2'304,864,8600% A 7 ( B 7% (iii) ) SR /NI
BRAFA Short position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii)) corporations
%2 304,864,8608% I (M7 (i) /NS
CCBI Investments Long position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
Limited (Note (iii) corporations
17 2 304,864,8608% B 15 (B %l ) SR Za/NSL
Short position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii) corporations
% 8 304,864,8608% fz 17 ( BT #E(iii)) RN
Central Huijin Investment Long position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
Limited (Note (iii)) corporations
RRESIREFR 4F B304,864,8600% A% 15 (B (i) ) SR /NSIL
=R Ea/NE| Short position 304,864,860 shares 8.28% Interest of controlled
(Note (iii)) corporations
% 78304,864,8608% It (M7 (i) ) /NS
Notes: B aE
(i) 834,767,140 shares were held by Superb Smart, a company wholly and (i) 834,767 VMO IN AR RIAITEETR TR IR
beneficially owned by Ms. zZheng Juhua, the executive Director and T Lt2ERE=EA 2 Superb Smart Limited##
Chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Ms. Zheng Juhua is deemed to BBl BREFSFRAEGRAIBHELTHR
be interested in the relevant shares under the SFO. ARBEER GO HAER -
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(i) 341,132,000 shares were held by Dragon Mind Holdings Limited which
is wholly-owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Zhang Lirui ("Mr.
Zhang") is the settlor and Managecorp Limited (the “Managecorp”) is
the trustee, and accordingly, Mr. Zhang and Managecorp are deemed to
be interested in the relevant shares under the SFO.

(i) Sea Venture Limited, which is wholly owned by CCBI Investments
Limited, was granted a put option for 304,864,860 Shares. CCBI
Investments Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings
Limited. CCB Financial Holdings Limited is wholly owned by CCB
International Group Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by China Construction Bank Corporation. China Construction Bank
Corporation is owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin Investment Limited.
Accordingly, CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central
Huijin Investment Limited are deemed to be interested in the relevant
shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
corporations or person who, as at 31 March 2019, had the Voting
Entitlements or any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Ms. zZheng Juhua, aged 47, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Ms. Zheng
conducts a property rental and investment business in Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China. She has over ten years of
experience in securities investment in Hong Kong. She is the
sole beneficial owner of Superb Smart Limited, a substantial
and controlling shareholder of the Company which holds
approximately 22.68% of the issued share capital. She has not
held any directorships in the last three years in any other public
company the securities of which are listed on the securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 52, is an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree with honours in Business Administration and a master
of science degree with distinction in Corporate Governance
and Directorship. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is a practicing certified
public accountant and has extensive experience in financial
management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.

Mr. Chan was appointed to the Board as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer in June 2011. He is currently an
executive director and chairman of Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8125) and an executive director
of Great Wall Belt & Road Holdings Limited (stock code:
524). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089), Asia
Energy Logistics Group Limited (stock code: 351), China Baoli
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 164), Media Asia
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8075) and New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166). He was an independent
non-executive director of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited
(now known as Power Financial Group Limited) (stock code:
397) from January 2015 to October 2017, U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (now known as Fullsun International Holdings
Group Co., Limited) (stock code: 627) from November 2010 to
December 2017 and Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1466) from December 2016 to September 2018.
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Ms. Wang Yingqian, aged 55, was appointed to the Board as
executive Director in April 2017 and resigned on 8 March 2019.
Ms. Wang holds a bachelor degree of Finance from Renmin
University of China and a qualification of intermediate economist
issued by Beijing Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau. Ms. Wang was the deputy general manager
of corporate banking department of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Beijing Municipal Branch from 2005 to 2006.
Ms. Wang was the vice president of Bank of Communications
Beijing Municipal Branch from 2010 to 2013 and a director of
Bank of Communications Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. from 2010
to 2012. Ms. Wang has over thirty years of experience in the
commercial banking industry and has extensive experience
in project management and financing. She is currently the
supervisor of Fortunes United International Leasing Co., Ltd. and
an independent director of ABC Life insurance Co., Ltd., both of
the companies established in the People’s Republic of China.

Ms. Wang is currently a non-executive director and Chairman of
China Best Group Holding Limited (stock code: 370).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 72, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court
of Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice and was appointed
by Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor between 1995 and
1997. He is currently a director of Apleichau Kai Fong Primary
School, the deputy chairman of Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare
Association, the secretary of Apleichau Promotion of Tourism
Association and the honorary legal advisor of Junior Police
Officers’ Association. Mr. Man is not related to any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559).
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Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He has over 28 years of
experience in real estate and financial services industries. Mr.
Yu has a Bachelor Degree in Management from Youngstown
State University in Ohio, the United States and a Master of
Science Degree in Financial Services from American College
in Pennsylvania, the United States. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was the
first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San Francisco
Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real Estate
Company in the United States between 1980 and 1995 and held
senior positions in MetLife and New York Life Insurance Company
in managing Asian customers in North America. Mr. Yu is not
related to any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders the Company.

Mr. Yu is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910). He was an executive
director of Far East Holdings International Limited (stock code:
36) from November 2014 to October 2017 and an independent
non-executive director of Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 1031) from September 2008 to September 2016.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial control area. He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy
Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is
not related to any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Chi is currently an executive director of DeTai New Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 559) and an independent non-
executive director of Perfect Shape Medical Limited (formerly
known as Perfect Shape Beauty Technology Limited) (stock code:
1830) and Greentech Technology International Limited (stock
code: 195). He was an executive director of Ceneric (Holdings)
Limited (now known as TFG International Group Limited) (stock
code: 542) from October 2010 to June 2017.
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Senior Management

Ms. Chan Wai Fung, aged 37, is a company secretary and
financial controller of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor
degree of Accountancy from University of South Australia. She
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting, financing and company secretarial matter. She joined
the Group since June 2011.

Ms. Li Yue, aged 31, is a finance manager of the Company. Ms. Li
has a Master degree of Financial Management from the University
of Alberta and bachelor degree in Business Management
(Accounting) from Jilin University of Finance and Economics and
she has the certificate of accounting profession issued by Finance
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. She has over 5 years of
experience in banking industry. She joined the Group since July
2015.

Mr. Zhou Dezhao, aged 41, is a general manager of the Group’s
finance leasing department. He has a Master degree of Business
Administration from University of Northern Virginia and a bachelor
degree in Finance from Sun Yat-Sen University. He has over 15
years of experience in banking industry. He had worked in several
banks as a general manager in business department or business
development department before joining the Group. He joined the
Group since October 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 69% (2018: 90%) and 39% (2018:
49%) of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 95% (2018: 92%) and 80% (2018:
39%) of the Group’'s purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers above at any time during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to bye-law 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, every
director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any
loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred
by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office
or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company and its listed subsidiary have
maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2019.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications, experience and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a contribution retirement scheme of
the Group set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Under the scheme, employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month and they may choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contribution is at the rate
of 5% of each employee’s monthly salary up to the maximum
limit of HK$1,500 per month.

Subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities since incorporation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 38 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the sufficiency of public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at any time during the year
and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition”) with independent third
parties, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to acquire 100%
equity interest in ChaoShang Financial Holding Limited and its
subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$250 million, details of which
have been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 January 2019. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on
31 May 2019, the Acquisition was approved by the shareholders
at a special general meeting held by the Company. The Acquisition
has yet to be completed as at the date of this report.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 12 April
2019, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent to set up a bond issue program for placement
of bonds (the “Bonds”) with aggregate principal amount of up
to HK$50,000,000. As at the date of this report, an aggregate
principal amount of HK$7,800,000 of the Bonds has been issued
by the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising three independent non-
executive directors, has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Lau
& AU Yeung C.PA. Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019

Annual Report 2019

EREEE
BENZBEH-RBUIFNTESEN BF
BIAREERNAFE 2 ERBRERYHRE -

BFERERER
RAFEER AREEBTHAKEZERE

REENERERIOER -

By ZEE
RAMBHRRECEIMGSIMEEMBERA
AER ERERSRYAERIER-

REEFE
BT
Ey

B8 —T-hFRAZ+AA



Independent
Audltor s Report

B 2B AR E




NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

82

18 S bl it +f

[ LAU | 2B @t imsmspamasE
SR GANERI 1 AU & AU YEUNG C.P.A. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 214,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2019
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment assessment
of trade receivables, loan and interest receivable and deposits,
prepayments and other receivables.

Key Audit Matter
BREITSEE

B

REFBGIMAGHEMN (EXEFE
s AD (AT ERTAL BB
n BEKE YCETERTAPHEMEE
BRERAE

RRETEE
MREFFRERERMNERALE  RAY
AHRAMBREANBARRERNER G
LEETERMBABRBEAMBHRRLLA
EARETREN -HMITEHREFAENR
BERENER-

BAEZFAPHNNEREAFTHERRKE
o EKREREFNEMES FANREEMmRE
WK IR 2 R B R -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BT AR E

Impairment assessment of trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables and deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

ERER EHERRASNZS BAARRELME
W IR 2 B R

Refer to notes 20, 23 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements
2N E PR ERMIFE20 + 235%21

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability
of trade receivables, loan and interest receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables included:

BAEBERURR BRERENEMEZS BNRRE
i FE W R TR AT e B ey B AR T B4R

b T =
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Key Audit Matter
BREEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTAEE

As at 31 March 2019, the net carrying amounts of
the Group's trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and deposits, prepayments and other
receivables were HK$154.6 million, HK$87.5 million and
HK$18.3 million respectively, in which allowance for
impairment losses of HK$62.0 million, HK$0.9 million
and HK$22.5 million were recorded.
RZE-—NF=A=+—H ' ESENEKER E
WEREFBMZS B RREMmERRIES B A
154,600,000/ 7T » 87,500,000/ 7T K 18,300,000/% 7T
Z2FHREEE RS BIEK1562,000,0007% 7T + 9,000,000
7 7T F122,500,0007 JT °

Management assessed the impairment loss on
trade receivables, loan and interest receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables based
on assumptions about expected credit loss rates. The
Group used judgments in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment loss
calculation, taking into account cash collection history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates.

EREEENEREEBRENMKRY YRR R EK
ERRAEIE S - FER R K e R IR ) R (B
Talfd- EXETEHMEERMNERZREFENBA
B ZE T BAEYGIER RANTISE R KA
WE MR o
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Understood key controls in relation to expected
credit loss (“ECL") impairment assessment.
EEETEH s BB AT 28 R EN G BN R IBE
il o

Understood the ECL model used by the Group.
BREBYEREERATERENER-

Challenged management the rationale for expected
credit loss rate of different group of age and type of
debtors.

BB TRRRREBANEREEIEAENGIE
MR E R

Examined the ageing profile of the debtors
and checked the accuracy of the calculation of
impairment loss allowance.

BEREBANRERAELRERE SN ERE -

Obtained and understood from management of
established policies and procedures on credit risk
approval and monitoring.
MEREREDRE 2 (EEREIE R ERBEM
BT e

Critically challenged management’s assessment of
the recoverability of those individual debtors with
little or no settlement subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
HEEBHREREREREL LB ERNER
B AR AU Bl BT (T TRE SR 1 B 8 o
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Key Audit Matter
BRESNER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNESNMEE

We focused on this area as the balance of trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables and
deposits, prepayments and other receivables were
material to the consolidated financial statements
and the assessment on the impairment loss on
these receivables involved significant judgments and
estimates by management.

BMETIRZEE DHRNERERRERESR R
BRe BNRKEMEYREEEGRE M BRE
BREHEBUERR R EWE R EN SRS AR
K B A e R IE R (B HO AT A 2 B B B i A B K ) i £
hHE -

- Evaluated the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and deposits, prepayments and
other receivables in notes 20, 23 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

— HEWER BREFEFEMES BEIREE
i FE KR IB AE 47 & B 745 R 2= PfT 520,23 ]2 2178 2 4% 58
ELFTE

We found that the management’s judgments on the
impairment loss on the trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables and deposits, prepayment and
other receivables were properly supported by available
evidence.

RIBERMER  BMRAEREHRERN  BIRER
A B FIRE  FBA R R B ESGRIE R E R FIE = & 18
E’\]o

—FAEER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai

Practising Certificate number: P01886
Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 17 45 2 B JU A 2 i W 2 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #EZ2=ZF—F=HA=+—HI FZF

2019 2018
—E-hIEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FET FHET
Revenue e 5 108,240 463,268
Cost of sales 5 & A AR 8 (70,306) (432,630)
Gross profit EH 37,934 30,638
Other income E A 7 8,473 7,174
Gain/(Loss) on changes in fair value  FHEEEIRE A RLE
of held-for-trading investments 2y (F18) 5,935 (16,913)
Impairment loss on held-for-trading ~ #HEE B E REEE
investments - (3,500)
Gain on changes in fair value HEthsREERANEE
of other financial asset & 16 - 1,225
Impairment loss on inventories FEREBE = (1,759)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & U B8R ZUR B &5 18 (32,648) (11,789)
Impairment loss on deposits, e BARER
prepayments and other receivables — E fth g Uk I Rl B &5 18 (990) (10,480)
Impairment loss on finance lease FEM R E B E IR
receivables BIEEE (21) -
Reversal of impairment loss/ FEWE R R H EORE
(Impairment loss) on loan and BE (E8)
interest receivables 493 (489)
Impairment loss on property, R PNy
plant and equipment BB E 13 (5,170) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B QR EE 33 (5,458) =
Administrative expenses 1TERE 8 (36,667) (41,936)
Loss before taxation BRA% AT ET 1R (28,119) (47,829)
Taxation charge A 9 (7,909) (6,729)
Loss for the year NFEE5HE (36,028) (54,558)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 17 45 2 B JU A 22 i W 2 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # &2 =ZF—F=HA=+—HI FZE

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FAT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  E#2mE (EE) WA
ltems that will not be reclassified to ~ TE@FE# B2 8z AIEH -
profit or 10ss:
— Gain on revaluation of property, — IR B Y R
plant and equipment upon EhE - RERX
transfer to investment property B E R 9,659 -
- Deferred tax liability on recognition — — 458212 & W) 2K
of revaluation of property, plant MREMME FHER
and equipment upon transfer to BMEANELERIE
investment property aE (2,414) -
ltems that may be reclassified FETE AIBE B R DA 2 1B HY
subsequently to profit or 10ss: EH -
- Exchange differences arising on —HMESINREELED
translation of foreign operations PE X =&H (48,056) 75,423
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  AEEHMEE (EE) WA
for the year (40,811) 75,423
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEHEE (BB) KA
for the year (76,839) 20,865
Loss for the year attributable to: ITATEREREEERE:
Owners of the Company KRAEHAA (32,167) (48,407)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (3,861) (6,157)
Loss for the year KEEEE (36,028) (54,558)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income T ATEEREE
for the year attributable to: Ba2m(EE) A
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIESF =N (73,324) 27,427
Non-controlling interests FEE R (3,515) (6,562)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income  AFE@A2E (EHE) KA
for the year (76,839) 20,865
Basic and diluted loss per share &SREAR#BEEFE 1 HK(0.87) cents #Bfl  HK(1.32) cents &1L

The notes on pages 96 to 214 form an integral part of these I EHFEMEHRERE SN FEGE2148 2 i

consolidated financial statements.
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Asat31March2019 R-ZE—NF=HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NE  ZEN\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FEx T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment R PNE=Y 13 55,322 111,692
Investment property "By 14 48,321 13,000
Goodwill RS 15 1,000 1,000
Other financial asset HEthemEE 16 - 5,287
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 17 - 30,000
Finance lease receivables FE U B & & FRIE 18 109,482 113,861
Loan and interest receivables FEMCE R R B 23 - 6,308
214,125 281,148
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 23 1,694
Trade receivables JFE W BR SR 20 154,649 236,722
Bills receivable B EE - 16,383
Factoring receivables FE R IB FRTE 8,178 -
Deposits, prepayments and e FBARER
other receivables H b WRIE 21 18,327 98,878
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBERE 22 70,599 59,951
Finance lease receivables FEMRYE T & SR 18 112,795 45,734
Loan and interest receivables FEMCE R T B 23 87,485 70,167
Tax recoverable FEUR TR R = 78
Structured deposit TR 25 - 18,750
Restricted bank deposits ZRRFIERITIE R 26 - 5,622
Cash and bank balances Re MRTTHET 24 140,293 172,778
592,349 726,757
Total assets EE#E 806,474 1,007,905
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital &4 27 73,612 73,612
Reserves e 685,873 781,608
Total equity attributable to PAUNEIES SN
owners of the Company 759,485 855,220
Non-controlling interests FEIE i 2 (11,187) 13,955
Total equity AR 748,298 869,175
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019 2018
—E—-hEF ZE-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Contract liabilities EHaE 516 -
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 32 2,507 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 302 -
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERTBR 28 2 51,856
Contract liabilities EHaE 1,415 -
Bills payables R RE - 5,622
Accruals, other payables and JEFHER  EfER
deposit received FIEREWIES 29 35,537 61,211
Amount due to a director I —REFFIE 30 4,556 5,389
Amount due to non-controlling FE IR IR R 2 BIE
interests 31 250 995
Tax payables JERT TR IR 13,393 13,657
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 95,153 138730
Total liabilites ~~ #®#&&® 58176 138,730
Total equity and liabilities ERkEaEHEE 806,474 1,007,905
Net current assets REBEEFE 537,196 588,027
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBERABHEE 751,321 869,175
The notes on pages 96 to 214 form an integral part of these &AM BRI B SHNEICE214E 2 I

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 214 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2019 and were

signed on its behalf.

Zheng Juhua

MG TE
Director
EE

PR

BREFEOE2UVEZHAVBREEN T

£

Chan Chi Yuen
Director
EFE

—NEFEANRATHEREZRSRELRER

—FAEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #iZ2 =F—F=HA=+—HI FZE

Attributable to
Attributable to owners of the Company non-controlling interests
EAAREAEE FERER B
Property Share of net
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange Surplus  revaluation Accumulated assets of
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total subsidiaries Total
NEERE EEHEAR
KE  ROEE  BHBR  ENRE  BHOR @ RiEE it BEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL i TAL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 1 April 2017 RZF-tFmA-A 73612 795408 34178 (47,621) 1,001 = (28,785) 827,193 17,254 845,047
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year TEREER - - - - - - (48,407) (48,407) (6,51 (54,558)
Other comprehensive income Ht2ERA
Exchange difference on translation of BERNERUBERE L
financial statements of EiE®
foreign operations - - - 75,834 - - - 75,834 (@) 75423
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS
Contribution from non-controlling interest ~ FEER T & - - - - - - - - 3263 3263
Transfer to statutory reserve EINA 1 - - - - 1555 - (1,55) - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N§=f=1-H 73612 795408 34,178 28213 2,556 - (78,747) 855,220 13955 869,175
At 1 April 2018 (as previously reportec) W=F-\FRA-A
(BEER) 73612 795,408 34,178 28213 255 - (78747) 855,220 13,955 89,175
Change in accounting policy SHHREY - - - (1,011) - - (21,416) (2421) ) (2243)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZF-\EMA-A (&5 73612 795408 34178 21202 2,556 - (100,163) 832793 13950 846,743
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - (32,167) (32,167) (3861) (36,028)
Other comprehensive income Eft2ERA
Exchange difference on translation of BERNERUBREL
financial statements of EXER
foreign operations - - - (48,402) - - - (48.402) 316 (48,056)
Adjustment upon transfer of previously  BEFISHERNEA
self-occupied property to investment RENE REAE
property, net of tax effect - - - - - 7,215 - 7,205 - 7,205
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HKBLE - - - kil (15 - - 16 (21,622) (21,608)
Transfer to statutory reserve B iEEE - - - - 2113 - 2113 - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=f=1-H 73612 795,408 34,178 21,169) 465 7245 (134,443) 759,485 (11,187) 748298

The notes on pages 96 to 214 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BRABLER R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= =%

—NFZA=T—HULFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHER FET
Cash flows from RETHESRE
operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from ey (A s
operations Re 35(a) (83,207) 36,726
Profits tax paid, net EXMFER  FE (7,216) (904)
Net cash (used in)/generated from #&Z&;EZ& (FrH), Frig
operating activities HeFE (90,423) 35,822
Cash flows from investing RETHESRE
activities
Purchase of held-for-trading BEREEERE
investments (21,064) (26,264)
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE SHERSEM
equipment 13 (362) (4,800)
Purchase of available-for-sale BAHEERE
investment = (30,000)
Redemption of available-for-sale EEAHEERE
investment 30,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE- ‘“1%&%%M
plant and equipment T8 10 -
Proceeds from disposal of k= W% 7 Z
subsidiaries Fﬁf%ml,ﬁ 47,632 -
Proceeds from disposal of held-for- HERIEEERE
trading investments FT1S 58 20,580 13,450
Investment in structured deposit HERETERZIE - (93,750)
Proceeds from disposal of HEZBETR
investment in structured deposit BEFSHIR 18,750 75,000
Placement of restricted bank FAZRSIRITIFH
deposits - (5,622)
Release of restricted bank deposit BRI BIRITER 5,622 40,935
Interest received BEFIE 697 1,100
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEEHE, (FTA)
investing activities 6} 101,865 (29,951)
Cash flows from financing RMETBRSRE
activities
Decrease in amount due to a F’?E‘H BESRHIE
director Do (833) (821)
Decrease in amount due to a J?EH#T Mt e k1B
non-controlling interest R - (875)
Capital contribution from non- 3H Hﬂ% SEE
controlling interests - 3,263
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®&E;EE (FiA) Fis
financing activities ReFs (833) 1,567
Net increase in HeRBESEEER
cash and cash equivalents B INFE AR 10,609 7,438
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRE kRS
beginning of the year £EIEHE 172,778 98,144
Effect of foreign exchange f‘ BB FE
rate changes, net (43,094) 67,196
cash and cash equivalents at FRzZEEREE
end of the year £EER 24 140,293 172,778

CimRERERBRAA]

The notes on pages 96 to 214 are an integral part of these IWEHRAMBHRERBEHNFEWSE2148 2 Kt
consolidated financial statements. uf @
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NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

96

GENERAL INFORMATION

Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company's registered office is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton Il, Bermuda. The principal place of
business in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 2202, 22nd Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in vessel chartering, trading, money
lending, factoring and finance leasing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment property, held-for-trading investments,
structured deposit and other financial asset, which
have been measured at fair value.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETTHESE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 WBEE(£)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements REFE BBV BHMEEL 2ERE

in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group:
The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the Group and have been
adopted by the Group for the financial year
beginning on 1 April 2018:

MBBERFRERE TRREE
B NFREEERNERAEEZ
SETHEAEPITEREHE P R
= EHERER I 2B PR
HREVMBHRRBEABRKMMGER
Z EIS M AR EE -

() AEEERMZH T RAEE
SETTE
TR BT AR ZF
—\EmA— BBt 2 BT K
4 [ 3 R

HKFRS 1 and As part of the Annual BRBBRERED ERBANBRE
HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Improvements HKFRS FIRREEES EI-T-NFZE
2014-2016 Cycle B 2285 NS il i
(E3T%) FEIEN—T5
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement REMBREEN 2ERESERRN
of Share-based Payment F0R(BIAR)  HXNRS
Transactions
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) — Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BANBREED ERTENBREE
Instruments with HKFRS4 FAR(BITR)  RIENR:-ERIA
Insurance Contracts REBRBREE
B4 RBRZH
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ERRKREEN $RIA
E
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BENBREEN RERPANYE
Customers F158
HKFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarification to HKFRS 15 BRHERERER REEAUBRE
F15% (BTK)  EHZ155%
HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment BEEOER  BRREANE
Property 405 (BFTA)
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions BE(ARYH  IMERFRBARE
and Advance Consideration HEREZE

g)-RRENH

S AR
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Annual Report 2019

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)

Except for the Amendments to HKFRS 4, HKFRS
1 and HKAS 28, which are not relevant to
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, the nature and the impact
of the new and revised HKFRSs are described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to
account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified,
with the result that it becomes an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification.
The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any cash-settled
share-based payment transactions and has no
share-based payment transactions with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

2 FESHHEXHEE (&)

21 REEE(E)
(@) AEMERMZH T REE

FTER: (&)
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BE st ERIZE285 2 BRI A
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively
and recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances
in equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts
of adopting HKFRS 9 on the consolidated
statement of financial position, including the
effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit
loss calculations with HKFRS 9's expected credit
losses (“ECL").

2

Chnit EERBR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IEGTBRME (@)
21 REEE(#)
(@) AEET IR I T REE

FT2ERI: (&)

BB T ERES 2B
TA

BB RS R FE5% & Rb
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2R FEHBEIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

2 FESHHEXHEE (&)

21 RREE(E)

New and amended standards adopted by (@) AEEERMZFHITREE
the Group: (Continued) FTEERI: (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BB IR EREOS
TA(#E)
Classification and measurement (Continued) SHEFGE (&)
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts RZZE—N\FEA—H B
of financial instruments under HKAS 39 and the BB EREINRTE R
balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April MERTARABERERESR
2018 is as follows: B RS ERERATE R
R 4EeR 2 HERIDT
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BEASHENEFGE REBHBREENEIRHE
Category Amount Re-classification Amount Category
28 %8 ENSE k] 28
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
TATL ThL FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BARESABREN
profit or loss SREAE NIA B - 30,000 30,000 FVPL
From: RAE:
Available-for-sale investment MHREERE AFS 30,000 (30,000 - NATER

Annual Report 2019

FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

AFS:  Available-for-sale investments

Note: The Group has reclassified its available-for-sale
investment as financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss as this investment did
not pass the contractual cash flow characteristics
test in HKFRS 9.

FVPL: AR ETABTZNS B
BE

AFS : At RERE

5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEREME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RAEEE(E)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by (a) AEBERMZHTREE
the Group: (Continuea) RTEER: (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) %g/%ﬁ? Z%Z f/f LR ER 2 F
TA (&
Impairment JR1E
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally BB B ®E LR FEIRFE B
changed the Group's accounting for impairment LARTRE M TE RS B 548 (78
loss for financial assets by replacing HKAS HMiEEER) ZRNREEEET
39's incurred approach with a forward-looking AERIEIR 2 EEEEE
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. HKFRS 9 MR N B B B 15 5 2RI ZE9
requires the Group to recognise an allowance REEREHNEAEESR
for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at BEREBBENETERE -&
fair value through profit or loss. As at 1 April V8 B 5 R YE R SBOFR AR B AR
2018, an additional credit loss allowance of SEERFBNIEZALE
HK$21,421,000 has been recognised, in which FFABEIRFEBMES T
HK$21,416,000 and HK$5,000 was recognised AEREREEEERE R
against accumulated losses and non- “E-N\FHA—QB BEIH
controlling interests respectively. The additional TERE B E 185 521,421,000
loss allowance is charged against the trade 77T E 21,416,000 7T &
receivables, deposits and other receivables, 5,000 T B Rt E B &
loan and interest receivables and finance lease IEPERRE R P IR o BEINEE
receivables. BEBRERER &Rk
Hfth B U R IE - R E R
B R pEW EE HERIBH
Bk o
All loss allowances for financial assets RZE-—NF=ZA=+—
including trade receivables, deposits and other BeRtEERFEERENR
receivables, loan and interest receivables Be RE M B GKIA - B
and finance lease receivables as at 31 March Bk F B & pE e E R
2018 reconcile to the opening balances of loss ERBEsAEEBEREER
allowances as at 1 April 2018 is as follows: ZE-NFHEA—BZE
BEEBVES CHER
U
Deposits,
prepayments
and other
receivables Loan and Finance
Be- interest lease
Trade BEHRFRE  receivables  receivables
receivables REM ERER EymE Total
BN WA &)\ HERE @t
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
TET THT THT FTHET THT
At 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39 RZE-N\F¥=ZA=+—A
G- R 12,383 20,225 489 - 33,097
Amounts re-measured under ECL BRBNRAEEAERCE
through opening accumulated losses ~ BREEHHENEE 18,055 1,953 891 522 21421
Currency translation difference EHHREZER 910 38 37 2 1,011
At 1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 RZE-N\EMA-A
— BRI BREEREMR 31,348 2216 1417 548 55,529

b T =
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)
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New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Ccustomers

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS
11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue
and related interpretations and it applies, with
limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes
a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The disclosures are included in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption.
Under this method, the standard can be applied
either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected
to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 April 2018.

2 FESHHEXHEE (&)

21 REEE(F)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBERBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 WEEE(E)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by (@) TEBEEHRMZITREE
the Group: (Continuea) RTEER: (&)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Z B S R CE Bl 51588 &
Ccustomers (Continued) EAXI R ()
HKFRS 15 does not have impact on how 8 B R 8R4 S Bl 55155k
the Group recognises revenue. However, REE R 5 E S
the adoption of HKFRS 15 would affect the B o R RN B B S RE
recognition and presentation of accruals, other MBS e S B E B
payables and deposit received and contract B HEaEaRERD Rigse
liabilities. et BENHEREZD -
The impact on the Group's financial position FEREEIEREENEIS
by the application of HKFRS 15 as compared to o B B 40 S B 7% SR 45 HE B
HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and related interpretations ISR AN BT RS
that was previously in effect before the adoption BI85 « HE @ HERIE N
of HKFRS 15 is as follows: R AEREY AEBE
MR B BT :
Carrying
amounts
Carrying under
amount HKFRS 15 at
previously Impacts of 1 April
reported at adopting 2018*
31 March HKFRS 15 B
2018 R  BEEUBERE
R=B-N\F BEBUBK ZERISE155
=ZA=+—-H WEE R-B-N\F
2HEMN 15551 MA—HH
RREE -7 SREE*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET
Accruals, other payables — FEFTE - HAER 5B
and deposits received RBEYIES 61,211 (1,329) 59,882
Contract liabilities BHERE - 1,329 1,329

* AS at 1 April 2018, aavances from customers of
HK$1,329,000 in respect of services contracts
previously included in accruals, other payables
and deposit received were reclassified to contract
liabilities.

* R-FE-NFMA—H %
FIEET AER B R E
IHBERE K #zxe 2 B RAR
BE KB E P 501,329,000
BLTEEH D BEREHN
=§-

b T = 103



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

104

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)
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New and amended standards adopted by
the Group: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change
in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when
applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an
entity receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the Group's accounting
policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-
monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is
consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.

2

TEEHHRREE (&)

2.1

ARSI ELYE ()
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards not yet

(b)

adopted

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April
2018 and have not been early adopted.

HKFRS 3
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

HKAS 19
(Amendments)

HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture*
Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments’

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3,

2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 237

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

Chnit EERBR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
21 REE%E (&)

(b)

1 AR BR A O T BT B AR B RT 2
Ll

PAT #7 ] MR IE AT 22 Al e g
BORm BN T \FNH
A—BRBRZPRFEDR
HER RSB OR IR PR -

BAMBREELN EBRTE
3%, (B37K)

ABUBALEN ABAHENER
F9% (B3TK) FIERM

RRUBATEN REEHRERENT
FIRRAERET  RABRLEZH
A58 5 AEHER A
(B3T7)

EAUBESELN  HE
5165

BANBREEN  RRELW
7%

BRGHENZIRL EXNER
BRGERESH

(B31%)
BAGENF% FHEET BAL
(7TK) BE

FRGENENSE BENARAELR
(3% RS

R (ARMBRE AEHEEN

2EZEE)-2E THEH
F2%

“E-1EE EAR BRSNS
SRS 3 BEVER
FREMHE EEBIZ18E

BRGHERNE
1EREREH
8 F03% (53]
)

! RZT-NF—A—A=zz
& BAA B F E HIR AR

2 RZZTZZEF—A—Azz
& B A Y F 5 HA R AR R

2 RZTE_—F—HA—Hzxz
% BAA R F E HAR A 2K

: MARETE R EMAE A
AT A

—T-NFER

105



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

106

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2019

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is
described below.

HKFRS 3 Business Ccombinations

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) Consolidated Financial Statements and
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) address an inconsistency between the
requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2019

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability
is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine those payments
Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

using the same classification principle as in
HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can
choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach.

The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April
2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at 1 April 2019 and will
not restate the comparatives. In addition, the
Group plans to apply the new requirements
to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure
the lease liability at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Hong Kong benchmark lending rate at
the date of initial application. The right-of-use
asset will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the
date of initial application. The Group plans to
use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end
within 12 months as of the date of initial
application. During the year, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group
has estimated approximately that right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$9,852,000 and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$9,538,000 will be
recognised at 1 April 2019.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuea)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Presentation of Financial Statements and
Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in
Assoclates and Joint entures

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests
in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has
not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies
HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS
28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1
April 2019. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation
is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation from
1 April 2019. The interpretation is not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.2 Subsidiaries

2.21

Annual Report 2019

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group's accounting policies.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continuea)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continuead)

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continuead)

Annual Report 2019

@

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date,
any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9/HKAS 39 in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

2 FESTHHREBE#)

22 WEAE (&)

22146 (ﬁg)
@ XBEEG(E)
5 3 15 & Bf 7 P& B

T KRBT ERKAEZ
WHHE 7 A U RE B Rk as
ZEEEREEAOR
REEHMTERLEN
FAEMELNEMRE
RIBa P HER

N ER B P dE R R a] S AA
REBEKRES BIEA
AEER - KR AE—IE
BEIBEZHXARE
/&ﬁ@é% B Bk
BB G mEERNE
97)7/%-5/% FTAERIE
395k 2 RE N B EJz
HEfh2mkEPER
DR Z&%ﬁfﬁ
BESEHE mMER
HEERERARK-

HEORE REBT
Z AR SEER AR 2 A I
WU B Ty 2 (1] AT S
mAEWIE R A RER
3B FEAG BT R m] HE R0
BEAEOHE
REE-HREBEM
CHERREEZE O
.2 FIFIE BB R K Al
E%ﬁZ%ﬁZ%(%’EL
RIFRBIHE A RFE
ENARE ZEZ8E
EHEBEmhEMEEE
AR PR



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continuea)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continuead)

(o)

©

Changes in ownership interests in
Subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner

consi

stent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

2.4 Fore

(a)
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ign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
("HK$") which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency. Other
functional currency is Renminbi (“‘RMB"), Euro
(“EUR") and US dollar (“US$").

The Directors consider that presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in HKS$ will
facilitate analysis on financial information of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where the items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within “finance income or cost”. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.4 Forei

(c)

Annual Report 2019

ign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing exchange rate at the date of
that statement of financial position,

- income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions),
and

- all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in the
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposal (that
is, reductions in the Group's ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the item’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 Y¥E RERSEM(E)

120

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over the estimated
useful lives, as follows:

ME- R REMRABRERE
e ERAFHRERAED R
HFREEAETE -t EA
FHIIT

Property over the unexpired LIES LM

period of the lease HETE
Furniture and fixtures 5 years RARKE 54
Motor vehicles 4-5 years aE 4-5%
Vessel 20 years A AA 204
Leasehold improvement 3years HERE 3F

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed
at the next dry-docking are identified and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-docking of a
vessel are capitalised and depreciated over the period
to the next estimated dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item (including the relevant prepaid
lease payments) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
Profits.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.6

2.7

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is measured at its fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property
is included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.8

29

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other assets subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial assets
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (OCl) or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

()

()

(i)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held-for-trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Acco

unting policies applied from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

(1)
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Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBEBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued) (1i)

29 EWEE (&)
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itE (%)

Debt instruments (Continued)
° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured

EHILE (&)
e BAREFEBHESD
AP AR REREH

at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt MASIE R ERE R
investment that is subsequently measured HEHT AEMEZAEK

at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or 10ss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Acco

unting policies applied from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

()

Annual Report 2019

Impairment

The Group assesses the ECL associated with its
financial assets on a forward looking basis. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and finance lease receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables and finance lease receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.
The adoption of new approach result in the
impact on the amounts reported in the opening
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018
has been disclosed in Note 2.1(a).

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

While cash and cash equivalents and financial
assets at amortised cost are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no
impairment loss was identified on the cash
and cash equivalents and the impact on the
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost
reported in the opening statement of financial
position on 1 April 2018 has been disclosed in
Note 2.1(a).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 EWMEE (£)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held-for-trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Acco
2018

unting policies applied until 31 March
(Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-

tradin
recog

g may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
nition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis,
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 EWMEE(£)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in the other
income line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, other receivables,
bills receivables, trade deposits paid, structured
deposit, restricted bank deposit and cash and cash
equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 EWMEE(£)
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Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. Assets in this category are
classified as non-current assets unless they mature,
or management intends to dispose of them within 12
months of the end of the reporting period. The Group
has designated the unlisted equity investment as an
available-for-sale investment on initial recognition.

Available-for-sale equity financial assets that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 EWMEE(£)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHREBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued) 29 EWMEE(£)

132

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which
the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEXHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments 210EEEMT A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair values and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories comprise (i) bunkers on board of vessels
and lubricating oil, (i) marine products and (iii) frozen
foodstuff, all are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Bunkers will be used for the operation of the vessel,
therefore the bunkers are not written down to net
realisable value when the market price falls below
cost if the overall shipping activity is expected to be
profitable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEXHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 21I3REeRBFESEEER

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and RiFEBReRER RekBesE
cash equivalents include cash in hand and at financial BEEREFERS RS REER
institution. & o

REZREIVRITERDIRB X
HIRTTFR] AR AR RERAN
RERRSFEEDTEEZRHR

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are
classified as “restricted bank deposits”. Restricted
bank deposits are excluded from cash and cash

equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash 1T
flows.
2.14 Share capital 214 & &

BRSNS BIRRBNE
BRI G O WA PN R S
I RISRZR D (FIRTRIA) -

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables 215 B R R EMEATRIR

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.
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@) RESBEARDEE BRI
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FE A BR A S EL & A SRR AE IR 2
REWER  BEEBERN KRS

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method. SHRKANGT £ ©
2.16 Borrowings 2168 &
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, BEENRIEER K NET S

net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings BAARBEER  HIE R HE R
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any IR TS RIE (HIRR R K AN ) B
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction EEERZ EREENEE RS
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in BAEBRMNEEZNGE B R EME
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HERE R IER -

other comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHRHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.16 Borrowings (Continued) 216 BE (&)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that part or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEXHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.18 Provisions (Continuead) 218 & (&)

136

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements.

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Annual Report 2019

BERRERABNABETRX
ZBE RABA ARG E %A
KRB EEMSEHEERRERE
BB (B R 2 7 - BEE B
BEMIB Nz BEER R EH
Lo

2.19 ED A KR E PR 1S Bt

HA 5 28 7 32 B 4 B AR 18 MR AE
BE-RADRGEEREREME
Ei s & AR EEEEREAM
EHWGERERER CHBEERE
BRONFERLIE R T IR T D BB
EREMb 2RSSR PR -

BIEAFR1S B S h AR IE AN X B) M Y /88
NEVEIEE R E L ERTHEUAR
BRNEE R EMKNEERM
MRBEDIETE - EEERE R KR
BRI BAT R R I I E HIRHE
MR - HEBERBR T RIT
TEHIZE R TSR ST 2 TR TE
Bt

BELEMGHEAABEIERNEE
MBEZREREERAMHRER
ZREEME CERER-

AT REELEFRAFHRIKERR
H (RBAHHRIN VIFERZE
ESBRE MERIRZAUEZE
SR RERTUEN HER AT E
AL IR o IR AT P 1S B IR T LATA 5 B
REBEMREBRRM 2B R (FOE
7)) B - XFRHR EIRARREELEFT
SHEBEEEXEEETCHEHER
R -



CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

TESTHREBE (2)

219N RIRIEFRIGHE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment property that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
property are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBERME (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) o
2.20 Revenue recognition 220 R
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Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
18,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the buyer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the buyer’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the buyer, and either
the buyer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the customers as this
represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from a time charter is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the charter.
Revenue from a voyage charter is recognised over
time, which is determined on a time proportion
method of the voyage.

Revenue from finance leasing consultancy fee and
handling fee are recognised as those services are
rendered.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Finance lease, factoring and loan interest income is
recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBEHE (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 220 S TERR (&
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer from which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Revenue recognition
Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and when specific criteria have been met.
Revenue is shown net of sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

Finance lease income is recognised using the
effective interest rate implicit in the lease over the
term of the lease. Contingent rent is recognised as
income in the period in which it is earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income from investment property is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Retirement scheme obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated at a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees payable under the
plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the PRC
government.

2

CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TESTHREBE (2)

221 EERA

(@

(b)

EE KR BRER
BEEZAFBREREREESR
ZBRARER  URBERE
HRESFBRZEHBER
B -

BEAZFAZHRBRRERR
RIREE T T HER

BARET BRI
REFERA LR AEE
ZTBEREBE2ERTEERH
EMBAEMzZHEERM
FURMEAEE - Bt Ak
EETHESETAZESR
FeaTAsRAZETE
e K-

EMBAAHRERERE L
At ENMARERAR
BATEREER ZRAKEHE
EoBREARNRN AEEY
EBHEMXMEBRKREAM
BRREN BT - %FatE
ZEERTERFEEZE
VEBESHR WEAKE
ZEENRABA

—FNEER

141



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

142

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.21Emp
(b)

(c)
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loyee benefits (Continued)

Retirement scheme obligations (Continued)
The Group also participates in a pension
scheme under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on minimum statutory contribution
requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group’'s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundantly the termination
benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted
to present value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.21 Employee benefits (Continuead)

(d)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted. In determining the fair value of the
options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions are taken into considerations
(for example, an entity’s share price);

. excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining as
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21Emp
(d)
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loyee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continuead)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the Company revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market performance and
services conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares and the proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

The options granted by the Company over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
are treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity account.

A cancellation during the vesting period (other
than a grant cancelled by forfeiture when
the vesting conditions are not satisfied) is
accounted for as an acceleration of vesting, and
therefore recognize immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised
for services received over the remainder of the
vesting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEXHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.22 Leases 2228

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
finance lease receivable. Any unguaranteed residual
value is also recognised at the inception of the lease.
The difference between the sum of the minimum
lease payment receivables, initial direct costs, the
unguaranteed residual value and their present value
is recognised as unearned finance income. Unearned
finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBERBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued) 2228 E (&)

146

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss other
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include
other financial asset, held-for-trading investments,
available-for-sale investment, finance lease
receivables, loan and interest receivables, trade
and other receivables, bills receivable, factoring
receivables, trade deposits paid, structured deposit,
restricted bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, contract liabilities, bills payables,
accruals, other payables, trade deposit received,
amount due to the non-controlling interests and
amount due to a director. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments,
include liquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and price risk, and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
Group has adopted the risk management policies and
guidelines. The board of directors meets periodically
to analyse and formulate measures to manage the
Group's exposure to different risks arising from the
use of financial instruments. Generally, the Group
employs conservative strategies regarding its risk
management. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for
each operating entity of the Group and are
aggregated by the Group finance department.
The Group finance department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration
the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance
sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)
(a) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 HMBEREEEERBX#)

31 MHEBEE (&)
(@ "RBESEE (&)
TERBREBEHBRERAREAH
BH A 2 R R HA R A SR
ZEBAESE D RHEEEH
ARl RAMBEESEA/EH

RERBERE -
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
DPME 1ZE5% 55 E @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TBT TR TBT

At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
=ZHA=+—-H

Trade payables JERTERRR 2 - - 2
Contract liabilities ANEE 1,415 516 - 1,931

Accruals, other payables [ETER  Hi g
and deposit received HEREWEZES 35,537 - - 35,537
Amount due to a director ERN—RESFE 4,556 - - 4,556

Amount due to BT SRR R 5N IE
non-controlling interests 250 - - 250
41,760 516 - 42,276

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=h=1-H

Trade payables FE1TER 3R 51,856 - - 51,856
Bills payables NES 5,622 - - 5,622

Accruals, other payables [EETER  Hi R
and deposit received FERENIEZES 61,211 - - 61,211
Amount due to a director ERN—2ESFE 5,389 - - 5,389

Amount due to eI SRR R 50 IR
non-controlling interests 995 = = 995
125,073 - - 125,073
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade receivables, bill receivable, factoring
receivables, finance lease receivables, loan
and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables which represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk.

To manage this risk, cash deposits are mainly
placed with reputable banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sale of
goods and provision of services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history
and appropriate financial strength. It also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2019

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating;
o external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results and finance position
of the borrower; and

o significant changes in the expected
performance, payment status and
behaviour of the borrower.

The trade receivables, bills receivable, factoring
receivables, finance lease receivables, loan
and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables are subject to the ECL model.

3 UXEREERE

3.1
(b)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

While restricted bank deposit, structured
deposit and cash and cash equivalents are
also subject to the impairment of HKFRS 9, no
impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and finance lease receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables and finance lease receivables have
been individually assessed based on respective
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.
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3 FINANC

IAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2019

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Impairment on bills receivables, factoring
receivables, loan and interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables are measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the asset as at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition by considering
available, reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.

Maximum exposure and staging classification
The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on the customers’ creditworthiness
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and the staging
classification as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March
2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts and the exposure to credit risk for
financial assets.

3 HMEEBEEESERBER(#)

3.1
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREEEERBX#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EREZE (&)

(b) credit risk (Continuead) (b) &R (&)
Maximum exposure and staging classification wm A B OREE S HE
(Continued) (%)
1 April 2018
—E-\EMA-H
Stage Il
Stage | Stage Il (Lifetime
(12-month  (Lifetime ECL-  Simplified
ECL) ECL) impaired)  approach Total
BE=
BEg= (B
Be— (BE HESBA
(12BAR  HEHR BEHEE
BHEE EHEE Bk-
B%) B%) oRE) Ak &t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET S S TR TR
Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)
B3 () B 3£ () B 3£ ()
Trade receivables JE U BR 3K - - - 249,105 249,105
Bill receivables R ERE 16,383 - - - 16,383
Finance lease receivables ERERENE - - - 159,595 159,595
Loan and interest receivable [EMEF LA A 45,535 30,940 489 - 76,964
Deposits and other receivables &4 & E 4 etk 51 B
Note (ii) P (i) 92,289 4 25,573 - 117,903
Structured deposit BEEEER 18,750 - - - 18,750
Restricted bank deposit SRHEITER 5,622 - - - 5,622
Cash and bank balance Be RBTEE 172,778 - - - 172,778
351,357 30,981 26,062 408,700 817,100
Less: Allowances for WREBERE
impairment losses (534) (765) (22,334) (31,896) (55,529)
Net carrying amount REFE 350,823 30,216 3,728 376,804 761,571

—T-NFER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEAREEBEEREEK(£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BMKREBERE &)
(b) credit risk (Continuea) (b) EERK (&)
Maximum exposure and staging classification = A B B O R g B 5 A
(Continued) (%)
31 March 2019
—E-hE=Zh=+-8
Stage Ill
Stage | Stage Il (Lifetime
(12-month  (Lifetime ECL-  Simplified
ECL) ECL) impaired)  approach Total
BEe=
&= (%M@
BE— (A HESBA
(12BRR REHR EHEE
BHEE BEHEE Bk-
B%) B%) oRE) A% &t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FEL FEL FEL THT TEL
Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)
B EE ) B 5 () B 5 )
Trade receivables & PR 3R - - - 216,639 216,639
Factoring receivables JEMIRE B 8,178 - - - 8,178
Finance lease receivables EURERENE - - - 222,81 222,811
Loan and interest receivable JEME R L& 81,861 6,009 489 - 88,359
Deposits and other receivables &4 f E Ak 5B
Note (i) T3 (i) 12,622 - 25,274 - 37,89
Cash and bank balance ReRENER 140,293 - - - 140,293
242,954 6,009 25,763 439,450 714,176
Less: Allowances for B RERERE
impairment losses (270) (144) (22,925) (62,524) (85,863)
Net carrying amount EEFE 242,634 5,865 2,838 376,926 628,313
Notes: oot :

Annual Report 2019

(0}

(i)

Among which, the financial assets falling in stage 1
are mainly credit rated as Pass, all of the financial
assets falling in stage 2 and stage 3 are credit
rated as Special Mention and Non-performing,
respectively.

Deposits and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$297,000 has been moved
from Stage | to Stage Il during the year ended
31 March 2019. The respective allowance for
impairment losses of approximately HK$2,000 also
moved from stage | to stage Ill with an additional
impairment loss of approximately HK$77,000
provided during the year ended 31 March 2019.

(i)

e BAZ-BENSH
AEIEAMALE HE
BAEHBANEZEEN
SREED BITRAMERN
TR

REBEE_ZT—-—hh&E=ZA
=t+—BLEFERN KBS
REMERRELENS
297,000/ T B A B — 8
BB = HARRREREE
EEEFEH /20008 T B
RZZE—AE=A=+—8
IEFERNBEE —EERE
= W NRAE S B A
77,0007 7T ©
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group was not exposed to
significant interest rate risk as at 31 March 2019
and 2018 as there was no variable interest
bearing assets or liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Directors are of the opinion that almost all
of the transactions of the Group and recognised
financial assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$, Renminbi (‘RMB"), United States dollar
("US$") and Euro (“EUR"). Given the HK$ is
pegged to the US$, the management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with such US$ denominated
balances and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented thereon. Otherwise, the Group
had no material exposure to currency risk as
majority of the Group’s asset were denominated
in its functional currency of either HK$ or
RMB. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management will monitor the foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

(1) Exposure to foreign exchange risk
The following table details the Group's
net exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets/ (liabilities)
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denominated in a currency other than the R R & AR 2 Bk

functional currency of the entity to which FEE o
they related.

2019 2018

—E-hEF —\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

RMB ARK 22 2,659

uss ETT 871 3,710

EUR BT (364) 26

529 6,395
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i)

156 Annual Report 2019

sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the

HHEREEEERBE &)

31 UHEBEE &)

d) Shesmbz (&)

() BRI
TRETRAEERAEA

approximate change in the Group loss EERHERRETE
after tax (and accumulated losses) in KNERS 2 INEEEREG
response to reasonably possible changes Al e B EY VR 2 BRR
in the foreign exchange rates to which the “wEE (RAEFTBE)
Group has significant exposure at the end A Es -
of the reporting period.
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
s HERBiE SN HERTZ
Bz BERKRRS EXRENS  BERZRR
(H2) BARNEE ORd)  EERgE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RMB AR 10% (2) 10% (266)
(10%) 2 (10%) 266
EUR BT 10% 36 10% )
(10%) (36) (10%) 3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

() Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period, and that
all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects
on the Group loss/profit after tax measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held-for-trading investments in listed
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities
compared to index of relevant stock markets
and other industry indicators.

sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period. If
the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2018. 10%) higher/lower, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
March 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$7,060,000 (2018: post-tax loss decrease/
increase by HK$5,995,100) as a result of
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Annual Report 2019

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
by level of the inputs to valuation technique
used to measure fair value. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Group uses independent valuers to perform
valuations of financial instruments which are
categorised into level 3. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the independent valuer at the
end of each reporting period, and are reviewed
and approved by the management of the Group.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the management of the Group is held
once a year to coincide with the end of each
reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXEREEBEEREE(£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea) 3.1 BERRBEZE (&)
()  Fair value estimation (Continued) ) 2DREMGE(E)
Save for the Note 14 for disclosures of the B s A R EEFE 2 1
investment property that are measured at fair BYIERTEIN TRE2INZ
value, the following table presents the Group's T-NEFERZT-NF=HA
assets that are also measured at their fair =+—HNURAAEFEZ
values at 31 March 2019 and 2018. AEBEE-
2019 2018
ZE-hE “Z-0\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 R B At 24 E-8 =0 A%
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TRL TER TEn TEL TAL FEL TAL FAL
Financial assets & R&E
Other financial e pEE
asset
~ Profit -l RE
guarantee - = = = - - 5287 5287
Structured deposit &R
- Bank deposit ~REE
inthe PRC RAOGR - - - - - 18,750 - 18,750
Heldfortrading ~ #EEEM
investments; RE:
- Listed equity — LA
securities F5 70,599 - - 70,599 59,951 - - 59,951
Total s 70,599 - - 70599 59,951 18,750 5287 83988

There were no transfers between any levels
during the year.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange classified as
held-for-trading investments.

The fair values of current financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
to their carrying amount.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

()

3 HMBEREEEERBX#)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BKERER (&)
Fair value estimation (Continued) H 2DABEMEE(E)
Financial instruments in level 2 E-RzeHTA
The fair value of financial instruments that are WIREFRMSEENS R
not traded in an active market is determined TEMNRAREFERBMERIM
by using valuation techniques. These valuation BT o EEERNEENA
techniques maximise the use of observable SN BRMSEE It
market data where it is available and rely as EEREHEREBEHEY
little as possible on entity specific estimates. ke - Wit ELEAEMH
If all significant inputs required to fair value an FBEZEHEATTEE Bl
instrument are observable, the instrument is TEFFAFE M-
included in level 2.
Financial instruments in level 3 E=RzeHTA
If one or more of the significant inputs is i —{Esk A EEZ 28 IE
not based on observable market data, the ERAERmISEE  BIZT
instrument is included in level 3. Bt AE=H-
The valuation techniques and key inputs used REEAREME R EED
of other financial asset of level 3 fair value FE=MARBEFTFEFTANM
measurement at the end of the reporting period BERMRER2EHOT
are as follows:
Significant
Other financial Valuation unobservable
asset technique inputs Rate
EARAEHE
HtteMEE HERE 2 [
2018
—E-NEF
Profit guarantee Monte Carlo simulation Discount rate 15.25%
8 AR B SRRERE Elope
Volatility 44.72%
]
Put option Monte Carlo simulation Discount rate 15.25%
Roh B SRRERE B 3A
Volatility 44.72%
&
Both the fair value of the profit guarantee and AR E KRG 2 A

Annual Report 2019

put option are determined using Monte Carlo
simulation.

EDRARE RETTAETE



Chnit EERBR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The fair value measurement is descendingly
correlated to the discount rate used, i.e. an
increase in discounted rate used in isolation
would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice versa.

The fair value measurement is ascendingly
correlated to the volatility used, i.e. an increase
in volatility used in isolation would result in an
increase in the fair value measurement, and
vice versa.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the
impact of changes in discount rate and volatility
as the exposure is insignificant to the Group.

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 March
2018.

3

HHEREEEERBE &)

3.1

BBEREE (&)
( DrREM(E)

F=RzEHMTA(E)
NAEFEEMERNE
RRIBERBER - B85
BRI KR F A B EH A RE
AETE R2TFR-

NS ERHE B P E AR 1R
BIRIZRAR - BN B E AR
MIE LA EMARERE
EH RZ IR

o A AN S B RS BB
RORIER S S TEE - A
38 TR B 7 -

TRINREZZZE—N\F=
AZ+—BUHEFEZE=HK
TEH#H)-

Other
financial asset Total
HemEE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFWMA—H 3,665 3,665

Fair value gain recognised M8 R Y

in profit or loss N ERE 1,225 1,225
Currency translation differences [ i, 38 25 397 397
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\FE=ZA=+—H 5,287 5,287

b T = 161
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREEEERBX#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEkRER

162

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders or sell assets to
reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the
basis of gearing ratio. The total debt to equity ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including amount
due to a director) less cash and bank balances. The
total debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

AEEEREAZ ARRREBAS
BARERE 2 M RKRR
R @

REBMZEARERBIERERE
BE-ABENAREARE A%
Ek g ARSI N TREZRESE
FHEEENRDEE - AEEL
BELRERER BEREYE
mht R BEFEREERTE -
BEFENBEE (REEREMN—
ZEEFR)RRE MIBITEF
H-RZE-—NFRZZE—N\F=
A=+—RAzaEEiEalsx
W

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Amount due to a director B —REEHE 4,556 5,389
Less: Cash and bank balances IR RRITETT (140,293) (172,778)
Net cash BeF (135,737) (167,389)
Total equity B 748,298 869,175
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEHERLE N/A FiE A N/A 73
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Useful lives and impairment assessments
of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets
The Group’s management determine the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets by reference
to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. Management will revise the depreciation and
amortisation charges where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives
and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in
the future periods.

The Group reviews tangible and intangible assets
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recovered. Assessing the
impairment loss requires a determination of fair value
which is based on the best estimates and information
available.

4

EEETHEERME

HERAEE T EHFE LR ELR N
HitREAER  BRERIBENERKE
HELBERA B ZTEET -

ARECHARARIEL AT REE L&t
fBECERME BEER RLEHE
MERERAR - Y MEMBFE 2 EE
RREEEAREZME MRERTH
To

(@ WX RERBMREMETLE
& B9 7] £ 1A 5 5 MR (B FT A

AEBEREMEME REMZH
R B ST B AR E fh At AT E
FH - FAEEMBEITE REH
ER HARESERREEER
EEEERKEENBOFHIES
Z o F A £ A FHIR 2 A P IEET HO
TR EREeERHERBIHE
A3 RERHENRER
1l 25 FF SRS 15 B 2 3 S MURL - B
IR AR B R et 50 PR 4 A AT RE R TR A
EAFHALAN ERFAKEER
ERBEAFNSKEEEEE-AMK
e iRBI Al B BT EF M R RIS EE
VE B JRE LS| BUR R B A3

ELEAREHNBERBRER
BENMBEENREER BETEE
Y ol B - AR SR B 2 B AR RUE Y
mE AR EBRERN FEETE
HARE M RAETAKER
BRAGENRERMERE

—FNEER

163



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

164

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)
(b) Provision for impairment of financial

(c)

assets (trade receivables, bills receivable,
factoring receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan and interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables)

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of the financial assets (including trade
receivables, bills receivables, factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables, loan and interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables) based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates. The Group used judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
collection history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of these financial assets and impairment
charge in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. For details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in the impairment assessment, see Note
3.1(0).

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation
technigues including the discounted cash flow model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Annual Report 2019
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2019 was HK$1,000,000 (2018: HK$1,000,000). Further
details of impairment testing of goodwill are given in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property is determined
by using valuation technique. Details of the judgement
and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgments and estimates are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

4
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(e)

(f)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)

ty)

Deferred taxation on investment property
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’'s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties
in the PRC and in Hong Kong are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred taxation on investment properties in the PRC
and in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted and deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised.

However, the Group has not recognised any deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment property
located in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March
2018 as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of this investment property.
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5 REVENUE
Revenue represents (i) income from vessel chartering;
(i) net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discount; (ii) interest income from money
lending, factoring and finance leasing; and (iv) consultancy
fee and handling fee income from finance leasing.

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as

CimRERERBRAA]
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W

Wes BIG)R B A S W (N mEHE
HEFHE (FIRRERESZITM) : (ilfE
E RELBEHRENBUWA RIVEE
HEBRABELRTFEERA -

AREERFEEARBEZ AT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hHF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Disaggregated by major products REEERRBESESE
or services line
(a) Recognised over time (@) REFBEBRAER
Income from vessel chartering R E YA 3,152 3,174
Interest income from money BE REMMEMRE
lending, factoring and FEHA
finance leasing 33,604 32,248
36,756 35,422
(b) Recognised at a point in time (b) RS IHER
Sales of goods 2 o 8H 67,664 427,506
Consultancy fee and handling fee BEHEERNER
income from finance leasing FEBRA 3,820 340
71,484 427,846
108,240 463,268

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Board of the Company. The Board reviews the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group’'s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of the
operations. Each of the Group's reportable segments
represents a strategic business unit that is subject to
risks and returns that are different from other reportable
operating segment.

TEEHR

ARAEERHATELEREA F
RAREZ NBRE  ETHERRR
SRAR - BREDEISRENDLE

ARENEEEBRHBLRERIZRY
HEELBEE - AR EMN A2 ML
EOBRREBRBUERTEN RN
Hi A2 MEE N BAAZ AR KD
o

—FAEER
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Group's reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

o Vessel chartering segment engaged in voyage
chartering in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Southeast Asia region;

o Trading segment engaged in trading of goods in the
PRC;

o Money lending and factoring segment (previously
known as “money lending segment”) engaged in
provision of loan financing in Hong Kong, loan and
factoring financing in the PRC; and

o Finance leasing segment engaged in provision of
finance leasing and sale-leaseback in the PRC.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit/loss earned by each
segment without allocation of incomes or expenses which
are not recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group's
operating performance, including central administration
costs, directors’ emoluments, gain/(loss) on changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments, gain on changes in
fair value of investment property, gain on changes in fair
value of other financial asset, impairment loss on deposits,
prepayments and other receivables (non-trading nature),
realised gain on held-for-trading investments, impairment
loss on held-for-trading investments, loss on disposal of
subsidiaries and interest income from cash and bank
balances and structured deposit.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than investment
property, goodwill, held-for-trading investments, available-
for-sale investment, other financial asset, structured
deposit, cash and bank balances and other corporate
assets.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 6 PEEHR#E)
The Board assesses the performance of the operating EZeRBELESEZEBEEERN,
segments based on their underlying operating profit/(10ss), (BB FEERE - IR AT Z &%
which is measured by profit/(loss) before taxation. M (BR)FE-
(@) Segment revenue and results (@) 7EWRERFSE

Year ended 31 March 2019
BZE-_E-NE-A=+-BLEE

Money
lending
Vessel and Finance
chartering Trading  factoring leasing Total
mMEE 5 ®“ERRE mERE @t
Segment revenue HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and results PERBEREE TET TET TET TET TET
Segment revenue aEWH 3,152 67,664 10,198 27,226 108,240
Segment results PEEE (6,234) (33,413) 6,714 18,688 (14,245)
Corporate expenses TERY (21,792)
Operating loss LEEE (36,037)
Corporate income TERA 7,441
Gain on changes in fair BEBEREANE
value of held-for-trading - Ele
investments 5,935
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEM B AEE (5,458)
Loss before taxation BRERIERE (28,119)
Taxation charge BEZ L (7,909)
Loss for the year AEEHE (36,028)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER#
(@) Segment revenue and results (Continuead) (@ PEWEREE(E)

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE-Z-N\FZA=T—HILFE

Money
lending
Vessel and Finance
chartering Trading factoring leasing Total
WmEE 25 HBERRE MERE Bt
Segment revenue HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and results PENRREE FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue a1 3,174 427 506 10,950 21,638 463,268
Segment results PEEE 2,217) (19,126) 7,580 10,868 (2,895)
Corporate expenses TERY (23,656)
Operating loss BEER (26,551)
Corporate income TERA 6,240
Gain on changes in fair HiemEERAE
value of other financial asset e 1,225
Loss on changes in fair BIEEEREANE
value of held-for-trading 2R
investments (16,913)
Impairment loss on BEBERERNEEE
held-for-trading
investments (3,500)
Impairment 0ss on HibERFBRHESE
other receivable (8,330)
Loss before taxation BRFLATESE (47,829)
Taxation charge HEZ W (6,729)
Loss for the year rEEEHE (54,558)
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(b)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 6 DEEHRE)
Segment assets and liabilities by PEHEERAERE
As at 31 March 2019
R-E-h&E=A=+-H
Money
lending
Vessel and Finance
chartering Trading factoring leasing Total
MHEE g5 ®ERRE MERE @t
Segment assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities PEEEREE TER TET TET TET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MmE - REREN 14,042 15 1,012 39,432 54,501
Finance lease receivables ERBERERE - - - 109,482 109,482
14,042 15 1,012 148,914 163,983
Current assets MEAE 23 157,140 97,913 113,342 368,418
Segment assets PEEE 14,065 157,155 98,925 262,256 532,401
Unallocated: RAE:
Cash and bank balances Be kBIEE 140,293
Others Hit 133,780
Total assets per statement of BB REELE
financial position 806,474
Segment liabilities FEEE 14,458 8,402 2,318 24,420 49,598
Unallocated: RAE:
Amount due to a director ERN—EEEHE 4,556
Others Ht 4,022
Total liabilities per statementof ~ BIBMREZEELE
financial position 58,176
Other segment information ~ Ht2E&EH
Capital expenditure BARY - 14 9 322 345
Unallocated capital expenditure AP EEARBEX 17
362
Depreciation neE 955 2 254 3,540 4,751
Unallocated depreciation AOEIE 1,572
6,323

—FNEER
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DTRER (@)
(b) 2BEERKE (&)

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018
RZE-NE=A=1+—H

Money
lending
Vessel and Finance
chartering Trading factoring leasing Total
e ihiihd 25 HBERRE MERE @it
Segment assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities PEEERER TEx TEr THx TEr TEr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MmE  REREN 21,546 1,503 1 84,297 107,347
Finance lease receivables FEl R EEERE - - - 113,861 113,861
Loan and interest receivables FEWE R RS - - 6,308 - 6,308
21,546 1,503 6,309 198,158 227516
Current assets MEBEE 13 352,322 70,249 46,122 468,706
Segment assets PEEE 21,559 353,825 76,558 244,280 696,222
Unallocated: AW
Cash and bank balances Be RBITEE 172,778
Others Hft 138,905
Total assets per statement of BBRRREESRE
financial position 1,007,905
Segment liabilities PEEE 15,349 95,131 1,166 19,368 131,014
Unallocated: AAE:
Amount due to a director ER—2EEHE 5,389
Others Hip 2327
Total liabilities per statementof — BI#M N K& BEE
financial position 138,730
Other segment information ~ HtpE&EH
Capital expenditure CNEFT - 1,422 - 744 2,166
Unallocated capital expenditure AP EEARE X 2,634
4,800
Depreciation e 878 27 2 3,421 4,328
Unallocated depreciation RABRTE 2216
6,544
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 6 DEER £
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) PBEEREE (&)
Geographical information hEER

B Z—hhFhk-ZT—N\F=H
T+ —HULEFE AEBEZEEMN
REBRFE -

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

Information about the Group's revenue from external BEAEERBEHINEP 2T
customers is presented based on the location at BT ESREEmIRE B2
which the goods or services are delivered or provided. B e

The Group's total revenue from sales of goods and NEBIRWERE D 2 & MR RIEHE

services by geographical location is detailed below: BT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Southeast Asia LR - 412
PRC s 104,759 459,110
Hong Kong BE 3,481 3,746
108,240 463,268

AEBREEMEME D 2 RS
BE(TEERBE AJHLERE

The Group’s non-current assets excluding goodwill,
available-for-sale investment and other financial asset

by geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:

REMEREE)FAMT:

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

PRC s 209,265 225,803
Hong Kong BH 3,860 19,058
213,125 244,861

b T = 173
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEEHR(E)
(c) Revenue are derived from the following (c) WBEDIRETINEEERF:
major customers:
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A* B R 42,083 -
Customer B* BRL* 15,015 229,133
Customer C* EPA* 8,398 -
Customer D# ERETH 4,765 -
Customer E# BRI 4,336 -
Customer F* BFEO* - 67,294
Customer G4* BPEBEA* - 53,158
Customer H* B - 51,262
Customer I* BEPI* - 15,228
* Customers of trading business * BESEBER
# Customers of finance leasing business ¢ MEREXEBEP
o The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% o SZ A A E I AR B AN &= E10% A
of the total revenue of the Group. e o
7 OTHER INCOME 7 HfplgA
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —FE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Bank interest income RITFI B YA 697 1,100
Realised gain on held-for-trading EERBEEERERE
investments 4,229 3,450
Unrealised gain on changes in RELREVEADEESH R
fair value of investment property 297 1,600
Exchange gain, net b H s JF R 1,716 -
Rental income MW A 1,421 895
Others Ef 113 129
8,473 7174
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8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 RMEIHTzZX

Chnit EERBR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Fuel costs AV IDWN 215 291

Cost of inventories sold GFEHEKA 66,645 427,097

Storage fees BB 146 1,228
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINA BEEEHE

emoluments 19,070 20,194
Contribution to defined contribution FE R FUR KR FIFT I

retirement benefit scheme (BEES)

(including directors) 972 864
Auditor’s remuneration % BURT BN & 825 817
Depreciation e 6,323 6,544
Exchange loss, net i 5 E1E - JFE = 1,727
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - RHERBEMEE

plant and equipment 18 -
Operating lease charges in respect of RKEHEZEFHEH X

property rental 3,685 3,500
Professional fees EXER 1,981 2,914
Repair and maintenance HIERRE 384 55
Vessel management fee MMEREER 491 500
Others EA 6,218 8,835
Total cost of sales and administrative  $5& AR R 1T E A 4258

expenses 106,973 474,566

—T-NFER
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Under the two-tier profits tax rates regime effective from
March 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at
the rate of 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits of the qualifying entity and 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000. Hong
Kong profits tax for the year ended 31 March 2018 had been
provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations
in the PRC is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Annual Report 2019

9 TAXATION 9 HiIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current income tax BUVERFR 15 74

- Hong Kong profits tax —EBEFEH 36 26
— PRC corporation income tax —HE SR 7,844 6,703
7,880 6,729
Deferred tax IERERL IR 29 -
7,909 6,729

Hong Kong profits tax ERAEB

BEE T NF=AREROMEH
M BEMNEHRIIREBESERER

2,000,00078 7T fi 5 FE SR 334 1) LA8.25%
ZMEGTHE - MRi82,000,00078 7T 2 st
FERTUB A A165% 2 HEFTE -BE—
E-N\E=-_A=1t—RHLEFEFRENE
W TR B il 5+ FE SR B0 F LA TR % 16.5%=tT

st
= o
>t

HE TSR
BRTBEEHBZHBEEEMEHERE
RITEN)  2BREREHRAFRE G
e M AR R AT H o
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9 TAXATION (continuea)

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be

9 WIE#H)

AR 2 1 TR B S BB 75 BT S 1R 2 SRR AN

reconciled to the loss before tax as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Loss before taxation bR AT E 1R (28,119) (47,829)
Tax at the applicable tax rates REAMETE 2B (5,685) (8,387)
Tax effect of: TIE S
Income not subject to tax R RRT 2 WA (1,682) (1,210)
Expenses not deductible TAHNB 2 EA
for tax purposes 12,513 12,306
Utilisation of tax loss previously B A LRI RER
not recognised TIEE R (16) -
Underprovision in prior year BEFERENR 6 353
Tax losses for which no deferred W R ERIELE TS 2
income tax was recognised B EE 2,793 3,697
Tax concession M REE (20) (30)
Taxation charge MIES 7,909 6,729
10 DIVIDEND 10 RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

&) o

EETEEREE TS NEF=-A=1—
BIEFERMEAMEE (ZF—\F:

—T-NFER
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11 LOSS PER SHARE 11 BREB
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Loss attributable to shareholders IR R FEAL 518 (32,167) (48,407)
Weighted average number of AEEREABECEBR
ordinary shares, for the purposes MEFHEE (FiR)
of calculating basic loss per share
(shares in thousands) 3,680,600 3,680,600
Basic and diluted loss per share BlRERLEEEE HK(0.87) cents  HK(1.32) cents

(0.87) Al (1.32) 7#Al

As there is no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding
as at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the diluted loss per share is

equal to the basic loss per share.

R-B-NER-F—\E=A=+—
A BmAEEEREYE 2 BRR W
SREEFRESRENBRER

12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 12 EEREEFALTHE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(@) Directors’ and senior management’s (@) EEREREBEAETMH
emoluments
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE—-NAF=A=+—HL#F
E
Employer’s
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
Name of director other benefits scheme Total
EEHA BER -FEeM EBIRFTEIZ
Hi g Fl ER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FERT
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua B Ie i+ 2,410 18 2,428
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRERLE 3,707 18 3,725
Ms. Wang Yingaian FRETLL
(Resigned on (RZZE—NF
8 March 2019) —AN\B&T) 880 = 880
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung S EREA 150 - 150
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBCEE 150 - 150
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ~ Z=E 5L A& 150 - 150
7.447 36 7,483
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2018

Chnit EERBR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 EEREEFHFALIHME &)
(@) EERERETEAETM &)

BE—_ZE—N\E=A=+—HLHF

E
Employer’s
Fees, contribution
salaries and to pension
Name of director other benefits scheme Total
EEMA BR - -#HaM RIREHEIZ
HAnE fEEH BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua #E et 2,406 18 2,424
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREERLE 3,706 18 3,724
Ms. Wang Yinggian FRETLL
(Appointed on (RZE—+t%F
19 April 2017) MA+IBEZEE) 912 - 912
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung EBERLE 150 - 150
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBCEE 150 - 150
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth  Z=E# 4 150 - 150
7,474 36 7,510
No directors waived or agreed to waive any RNEEN ZESZHMEREXBREN
emoluments during the year (2018: Nil). Fees paid to EEAMe(ZE—-—NF &)
independent non-executive directors during the year RFEERNINBIERITESZ
amounted to HK$450,000 (2018: HK$450,000). e B450,0008 T (ZFE—N\F:
450,000 7T ) °
No emoluments have been paid to the individual or REE=ZZT—-—NF=-A=+—HL
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining FEA - W EAERESEZAEM
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during B - 1 & 15 % 0 B2 sk BN A AN BE X
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). SEzReHBRBEE(ZE—N
Fom)o
Emolument bands Number of individuals
B & N F AB
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 =7 71 21,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,0017% 7t Z2£2,000,0007% 7T = i
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 1
6 6

—T-NFER
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 12 EEREBEHALTHME &)

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The Directors” emoluments presented above include
the emoluments of the three (2018: three) highest
paid individuals in the Group. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2018: two) highest paid individual
during the year ended 31 March 2019 were:

(b)

AEBEHAL

EXmR2INEEFMEE =52 (=
E-NF ZR)XEEESHA
TZMEe - RBE-_ZT-NF=H
=t HLEFERABRTHME (ZF
—N\FRMB)EEHFALZHE

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Salaries, bonus, other allowances & ~ JE4L ~ H b 28L&
and benefits in kind EYF= 1,706 1,699

Employer’s contributions to RIRETEI 2 B EHK

retirement scheme 36 36
1,742 1,735

Emolument bands

Number of individuals

We T AB
2019 2018
—2-hE —T\F
HK$NIl — HK$1,000,000 =% 7T 21,000,000 7T 2 2
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W% -RERSBEM
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
Property improvement fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
L/ES HE#E HKAREE RE MM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHT FTET T T T
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+&=A=1+—H
Cost N 76,442 6,174 4,818 3940 21,432 112,806
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (2,019 (2,932) (2,369) (1,219) (1,159) (9,698)
Net book amount RmFE 74,423 3242 2,449 2721 20,273 103,108
Year ended 31 March 2018 HE-Z-\¥=A=1-H
HFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 74,423 3242 2,449 2721 20,273 103,108
Currency translation differences T 7,964 203 18 ®) 2,148 10,328
Additions NE - - 42 4,758 - 4,800
Depreciation e (1,703) (1,800) (969) (1,195) (877) (6,544)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 80,684 1,645 1,540 6,279 21,544 111,692
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\§=A=+—H
Cost AR 84,710 5,607 4,865 8,698 23,750 127,630
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (4,026) (3,962) (3,325 (2,419) (2,206) (15,938)
Net book amount REFE 80,684 1,645 1,540 6,279 21,544 111,692
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE-_T-NF=A=1-H
HFE
Opening net hook amount FOREFE 80,684 1,645 1,540 6,279 21,544 111,692
Currency translation differences I 5 % (6,145) (86) (10) 271 (1,379) (7,891)
Additions wE - 175 187 - - 362
Disposal HE - - - (28) - (28)
Depreciation nE (1,465) (1,584) (995) (1,325 (954) (6,323)
Transfer to investment property ERERANE (37,309) - - - - (37,309)
Impairment loss RERE - - - - (5,170) (5,170)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBERAT - - (1) - N 1)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 35,765 150 m 4,655 14,041 55,322
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=RA=+—H
Cost BRA 38,410 5,502 5017 8,388 22,230 79,547
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (2,645) (5,352) (4,306) (3,733) (3,019) (19,055)
Impairment loss MEEE - - N N (5,170) (5,170)
Net book amount REFE 35,765 150 m 4,655 14,041 55,322

b T = 181
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not obtained the property
ownership certificate for the property with carrying values of
approximately RMB30.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.8 million) from the relevant PRC government authorities.
In the opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to the
property does not impair its values to the Group, as the Group
has paid in full purchase consideration and the probability of
being evicted on the ground of an absence of formal title is
remote.

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors estimated the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the vessel chartering
business (the “Vessel Chartering CGU"). As the carrying amounts
of the Vessel Chartering CGU exceeded its recoverable amount,
impairment loss of HK$5,170,000 was recognized on the vessel.
In estimating the recoverable amount, which is based on its
fair value less costs of disposal, the Directors referenced to
a valuation of the vessel carried out by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer and based on management's
review of the latest market conditions of the vessel and the
Vessel Chartering CGU.

As at 31 March 2019, the vessel was pledged to secure an other
payable, details of which are set out in note 29(i).

As at 31 March 2019, the registration of the vessel under the
name of the Group has yet been completed. In the opinion of
the Directors, the absence of formal title to the vessel does
not impair its value to the Group as the vendor has agreed the
vessels' risk and benefits has been passed to the Group and
the probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of
formal title is remote.

GEE

(i)

(ii)

13 W% RERBEHM (@)

R-ZE—hE=ZA=+—8 KEEHkK
BB BBRTISFIMEAEOAARE
30,600,0007T (18 & 72 £935,800,0007% 7T.)
MERESEHERE-EERA BRA
SEERBEINZEMENBEAREBAER
SEERBSERNEREMBERINKSE
WMARERE T ERETESAERY
HMEERBIE-

R-T—-HF=ZA=1+—H EB=HEMH
MAEEB s ReELEM ([MMEE
WEEAEN]) 2 B SEE - R MM
MERSELEN ZRAERBEAR UK
& F8 BT DAM A T SRR 1B /B 185,170,000
TC e M ET AT B S SRS - EE R EMBN
HEALRGEMETZHELEEES
A BT S BRI ERSEE
BN WHERDAAEREEX ARG E

RZZE-AF=A=+—8 MMER—
FHMBNRBZER  EFBEHRME
29(i) °

RIZE-NAF=ZA=+—8 SMHEF
RAEEZRTZFENARTK -EZR
A ARESERE BN RERR RS
EEEAEE AREEERRSGIEXE
BRMKERENOEEEN  SORERZM
MEEAEERTECHEARENEE
HiEe

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14 REY=

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F )48 13,000 11,400

Transfer from property, plant and MY RERBEMEA
equipment (Note (ii)) (HE3EG)) 46,968 =
Change in fair value RNiEEE) 297 1,600
Disposal during the year (Note (i) REZEAHE (MEEI)) (13,180) -
Currency translation difference bE 5, S 1,236 -
Balance at the end of the year FRERR 48,321 13,000
Unrealised gain on property revaluation %38 473 & (H Uk 297 1,600
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

(a)

(b)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment property at
fair value. The fair value of the Group's investment
property has been determined on the basis of
valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent and professionally qualified
valuer.

The management of the Group has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at annual
reporting date.

Valuation techniques
The investment property was revalued on the
investment method.

The investment method

Under the investment method, fair value is
estimated on the basis of capitalisation of existing
rent receivable from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics
of the investment properties, which included
the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of
completion and other factors collectively, to arrive
at the estimated rental value and reversionary yield,
while it takes into account the rental value generated
from the existing lease term to arrive at the term
yield.

The key input was the estimated rental value, term
yield and reversionary vyield, which a significant
increase/(decrease) in these inputs would result in a
significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest
and best use of the property is their current use.

CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 BEWHE (&)

(a)

(b)

rEBZEHERRF
AEBEZEAEFEEREDE-
AEBREMENRAETIREE
YEEAERMAEMSEFEER
REETZAEMERE

RETHER ~&E

REEREE
B HA S AR wiA ERR

EEEE
RAbE R

HER*E
BREMEIRREFETER-

RE%
RIFREE RAEDBZEME
BREMEZRUCRER S MER
EETSHEE TUERME 2 EEM
flate

EOHERSEREEERENE
2R BEMNE BECER R
BBE EXREMREMREZ N
SHETHAeEERER KSR
EREEEREHAHEEZHSE
B S FHREE-

IZHABELAGHESEE F
HRSEERERKREE  REEH
ABUBAEEF (TR &8
BREMEIARBEREB LA (T
B -

ERFZMEZAAER  ZWE
ERZARRERSMRERSE-

—FNEER
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continuea) 14 REWHE (&)

(c) Information about fair value (c) EEFEAERTIUEHREN AR
measurements using significant BrARABERE(E=ZR)2E
unobservable inputs (level 3) &

Range of
Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable unobservable
31 March 2019 techniques inputs inputs
R-E-h&E
=H=+-H TR FAIBE
ZARE HERE BWAZE WABEEE
RMB'000
FARE
Investment
property
in the PRC
RPBEzRENE
- Commercial office 41,300 Investment  Term yield, 3%
method Reversionary yield; 4%
Estimated net market RMB170
unit rent per saleable area
(month (RMB/sg.m.)
—BERDE 41,300 BEE FHRM R 3%
EHEE 4%
FEMLAHERRE AREE1707T
It EAEE
(B(ARERT/BFERX))
Range of
Fair Value at Valuation  Unobservable unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques inputs inputs
R=ZZ-N\F
=H=+-H FTUEEZ FABE
ZARE HERZE WAHE WABEEE
HK$'000
FHET
Investment
property
in Hong Kong
REBZREWE
- Residential 13,000 Investment  Term yield; 2.25%
property method Reversionary yield; 2.50%
Estimated net market HK$44.60
unit rent per saleable area
(month (HK$/sq.ft.)
—FEME 13,000 "EE FHEER 2.25%
EEkax 2.50%
BEMAHEEE 7S TTa4.6
ZIhETTSFHE
(R(BTL/BFAR))
During the year, there was no transfer of fair value RAFEA E—BRE_EZHE
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no WEAAEHEEE F=ENE
transfer into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). ARNEFEEBAREL (ZF—N

FiE)-
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continuea)
(d) The following amounts have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:

14

REWMZE (#)
(d) TIeHEERFARaMEMEH
Yook 2k R -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Rental income He A 465 255
Direct operating expenses arising BESHSRAZEENE

from investment property that EXZEEBELERAY
generated rental income (43) (88)

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, no investment property was
pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings.

Notes:

(i) On 31 August 2018, the Group disposed its investment property
located in Hong Kong under medium term lease through
disposal of a subsidiary, at a consideration of approximately
HK$12,500,000. Details of which are set out in note 33()).

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group leased out
a formerly self-occupied commercial office unit located in the
PRC and reclassified such unit as an investment property (the
"Investment Property”). The carrying value of the property
on the date of reclassification amounted to RMB32,727,000
and the Group recognised a fair value gain of RMBS8,473,000
and the resulting tax effect of RMB2,118,000 on the date of
reclassification. The fair value gain net of tax amounting to
RMB6,355,000 was recognised in property revaluation reserve in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not obtained the property
ownership certificate for the Investment Property with fair value
of approximately RMB41.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$48.3 million) from the relevant PRC government authorities.
In the opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title to
the Investment Property does not impair its value to the Group,
as the Group has paid in full purchase consideration and the
probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of
formal title is remote.

RZB-NER_F-N\F=ZA=1+—
H WE%?%%&%%%EEJEZJK%IE’MEMEW
AR

FfaE

RZZE-NFNA=+—H TEEEH
& — M B A - AR B 4912,500,000
BITHEREMREEATHHEERFFZ
JEYZE - HF BN AR EMEEI3() ©

0]

(ii) HE-_Z-NAEF=-A=-+—BLEE
A ASEEEE-BURAPEREBD
BENREYERL I BREMNEHR
PEABREME (ZIEREWE]) R
SHOER ZUENEEEARARE
32,727,000 MANEBREH HEH
BRAREKZ A A RS A73,0007T &
AEENHEZEARARY2118,000
ToARBERZNHRBEEEARE
6,355,000 B AR E = FBRTOY
¥XEHEREPER

—hWFZA=+—R KEEH
AEFREBBFHPFIRRIABHR/A
R #41,300,0007T (48 & 7 %748,300,000
BIL) CRIRAMEDR SR HERE &
ERR AR AEECBHINZEREY
ENBEREAREERRERGBEANZE
EMERENEEEN SRERELE
AERTESAREHENEERE

—NFFH
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15 GOODWILL 15 B8
HK$'000
FET
COST oEN
At 31 March and 1 April 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—HKNA—H 2,074
Written off of Ningbo Noble Century WEHE R CInE
Industrial (3)
Written off of Shenzhen Fortune WssRYIER (1,071)
At 31 March 2019 R-E—NF=A=+—H 1,000
IMPAIRMENT A
At 31 March and 1 April 2018 R-E—N\E=ZA=+—HFENA—H 1,074
Written off i 58 (1,074)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NAF=ZA=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNTS RE<HE
At 31 March 2019 and 2018 RZE—NEFR_ZT—-N\F=A=+—H 1,000

Goodwill arose from acquisition of (i) 100% equity interest
in Comercializadora Ven 2010 C.A Limited and its subsidiary
(“Comercializadora Ven 2010") on 9 July 2014; (ii) 70% equity
interest in Shenzhen Fortune Import & Export Co., Ltd
(“Shenzhen Fortune”) on 1 April 2016; and (i) 100% equity
interest in Ningbo Noble Century Industrial International
Trading Co., Ltd (“Ningbo Noble Century Industrial”) on 25
August 2016.

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash-generating units (“CGUSs").

- The operating activities of Comercializadora Ven 2010
which is engaged in the finance leasing business;

- the operating activities of Shenzhen Fortune which is
engaged in frozen foodstuff trading business; and

- the operating activities of Ningbo Noble Century
Industrial which is engaged in methanol trading
business.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors covering a five-year period, and a discount
rate of 8%, with reference to the cost of capital of the Group
and weighted market average.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based
on similar gross margins and inflation throughout the
budget period.

The goodwill of the Shenzhen Fortune CGU and the Ningbo
Noble Century Industrial CGU in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$1,074,000 had been fully impaired in prior
years.

Annual Report 2019
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GOODWILL (continued)

Ningbo Noble Century Industrial has been deregistered
in the PRC on 10 April 2018, as such its cost of goodwill
and impairment has been written off during the year.
Furthermore, in the opinion of the directors, the goodwill of
Shenzhen Fortune CGU cannot be recoverable, as such its
cost of goodwill and impairment has been written off during
the year.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the group of
units to exceed the aggregate its recoverable amount, and
hence no impairment loss on goodwill was required for the
Comercializadora Ven 2010 for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: Nil).

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET

CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 B8 @)

ERCHRER-_Z-N\FHEATHEER
REDE  FEut REERARBEER
REF AWM WO EERBHRYIBE
ReEA BN mEEARRE Hit &
BER A SORE S RASFEE M-

EXRE TRESEARIENERERR
WEMAIER REEE) T EENAEEHE
ZRREERBE A E SRR - FEit
RBE_Z-NF=ZRA=+—RHIFE
ChuELHEBEARE(ZFT—/\F:
®) -

16 HittEMEE

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Balance at the beginning of the year — F ¥4 5,287 3,665

Change in fair value NILEEE - 1,225

Currency translation difference PE 5 (465) 397
Derecognition through disposal of BB EW B A B IEER

a subsidiary (4,822) -

Balance at the end of the year FRERR - 5,287

Non-current portion of other HtemEEIENIED

financial asset - 5,287

Current portion of other financial asset E b4 gt & ZEENEAE D - S

- 5,287

The other financial asset of the Group as at 31 March 2018
represented the profit guarantee provided by the vendor
(the “Vendor”) to the Group arising from the acquisition of
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company Limited
("Qianhai Jiulongfu”) (the “Profit Guarantee”). Pursuant
to the Capital Increase Agreement, the Profit Guarantee
provided that for the period of five-years commencing from
the date of completion of capital injection by the Group
to Qianhai Jiulongfu, the audited profit after tax of Qianhai
Jiulongfu for each guaranteed period with 365 days shall
not be less than RMB10 million. Any shortfall between
the guaranteed profits and actual profits for the relevant
guaranteed period will be compensated by the Vendor.

R-ZB-NEF=ZA=+—B KEEH
HibemEENRET (15757])stkkE
AIFTENEREXERAR ([AEN
REfR ) AR BERHEAENRE (DEF
RiE]) - RIBIBE W5k - IR E BT
BAKERAENEEREEE KA B
SARFEHEA RERAHI65H 2R
HEEEZRTREENH N IRARE
10,000,0007T * 1A A A FE AR HA M) M B B st
MERFRZBENNERZBSAE L@

f&e

—FAEER
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET (continuea) 16 HithemEE &)
The Profit Guarantee represents a right to the return of i R 38 0w T RE 1112 AT U B] 58 AT
previously transferred consideration for the acquisition of BRI LEEITERREMNER
Qianhai Jiulongfu when the specified conditions are met A BREARE L RIBBABME®W
and hence constitutes a kind of contingent consideration HAERIEIN R BB G TR B39 AR
arrangement to be accounted for as a financial asset at fair YRR ASEGT ABENESREE ' fl
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 3 REERIBWES BB EELER
and HKAS 39. The Profit Guarantee was initially recognised R EMRETEERAREBEEZCAR
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the BHEFEEVBRREAR
acquisition-date at a fair value determined by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer.
The fair value of the Profit Guarantee was determined to be RZZE—N\F=A=+—H" B5HEH
approximately RMB4,230,000 (equivalent to HK$5,287,000) BRAREEHHRMNREAABO/AR
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited as at 31 March 2018, #54,230,0007T (48 & 745,287,000/ JT.) -
using a discount rate of 15.25% per annum, respectively, TIRBE R REH A RS EBOR MR
under Monte Carlo simulation and taking into consideration B D RIEFF15.25% IR K2 - H
of whether the Profit Guarantee is probable to meet. A fair e B E E A A ERM1,2250008 T2
value gain on the other financial asset of HK$1,225,000 was REE-Z—)\F=ZA=+—HLEFE
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March WNiEz=EP R -
2018.
On 27 September 2018, the Group derecognised the other RZE-—NFLAZ+ERH KAEEE
financial asset through disposal of Qianhai Jiulongfu, details B ERNENERRIEEREMESRE
of which are set out in Note 33(ii). B HEH B AN A Bt E330)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 17 AHHERE
2019 2018
—BE-AE  ZTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investment fund, at cost EETREES EAAR - 30,000,000

On 19 December 2017, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which, the Group
invested HK$30,000,000 in an unlisted investment private
fund which was set up for the purpose of investment
in a finance leasing company in the PRC. The unlisted
investment funds are measured at cost less impairment at
the at the end of the reporting period because the ranges
of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that
the Directors are of the opinion that fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

As certain of the conditions of the investment fund had
not been fulfilled, the Group’s investment on the fund was
terminated with the investment amount fully redeemed on
6 July 2018.
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18 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

18 BB EEERIR

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current portion of finance lease FEM RS A& FER B S

receivables 113,013 45,734

Non-current portion of finance lease & Uk @b & F2 & A IR ER S0 7>
receivables 109,798 113,861
222,811 159,595
Less: Provision for impairment wOREEE (534) -
222,277 159,595

* Each of the current portion and non-current portion of the

EURBERETREPES TRABEERK

finance lease receivables included an amount of HK$468,000,
totalling HK$936,000, being handling fee receivable in respect of
the finance leases.

Minimum finance lease

FEBSBEE D R IERNERED 468,000/
7T+ & ££936,0007% 7T ©

Present value of minimum

receivables finance lease receivables
REEKRBRERENE REEUMERERERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AF ZE/\F ZE-RF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET FERT FETT
Within one year —FR 130,588 62,015 112,795 45,734
In the second to fifth years, £ F 0%
inclusive (BEEEMFE) 125,360 132,990 109,482 113,861
255,948 195,005 222,277 159,595
Less: Unearned finance B ARERRERA
income (33,671) (35410) N/A FEH N/A i@ F
Present value of minimum  RIEEW A ERE
finance lease receivables ~ FIBIRE 222,277 159,595 222,277 159,595
Less: Current portion of W ERRERE
finance lease FIEBENHEREL 5
receivables (112,795) (45,734)
Non-current portion of FEY A B HE IR
finance lease receivables  ZEENEREE 109,482 113,861

b T = 189
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18 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continuec)

The movement in the provision for impairment of finance

lease receivables is as follows:

18 BUREMEEERE (@)
fEd B B E SRR ER EEEH T

HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2017 R_Z—+tFMHHA—H -
Provision for impairment BEEE -
Currency translation difference EHGREZER -
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-—NF=A=+—8H -
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BRI RFTEEENTENER
opening accumulated losses 522
Currency translation difference ERMEZESR 26
At 1 April 2018 WZZE—-NFMA—H 548
Provision for impairment VEREREA 21
Currency translation difference ERGE=E (35)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H 534

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the finance lease
receivables, except for the handling fee receivable, were
secured over the leased assets mainly by machineries and
equipments.

The finance lease receivables are denominated in RMB. The
maturity date for each finance lease contract is normally
not more than 5 years. The interest rate inherent in the
leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term.
The effective interest rate is approximately 10% to 23%
(2018: 5% to 18%) per annum. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at each of the end of the reporting period is the
carrying value of the finance lease receivables.

There was no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased
under finance leases as at 31 March 2019 and 2018. No
finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period
was past due. Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018, the Group applies the simplified approach to provide
lifetime ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for finance lease
receivables. The management assessed the expected loss
on all finance lease receivables individually and the credit
quality of finance lease receivables has been assessed
by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates.
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INVENTORIES 19 FE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bunkers on board (P ey A 23 13
Frozen foodstuff RRE - 1,681
23 1,694

The Group recognised losses of approximately
HK$1,759,000 in respect of the losses on obsolete
inventories and write-down of inventories for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

BE T/ \F=A=+—RHILFE"
AEBRREFE LHURFE MRS
18491,759,000% 7T

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 FEWERRK
2019 2018
—E-hEF —=—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Trade receivables FEUAR K 216,639 249,105
Less: Impairment loss B OREBE (61,990) (12,383)
154,649 236,722

The Group's trade receivables are generally with credit
periods of 30 to 120 days (2018: 30 to 90 days). The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount value of the trade
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated
in RMB.

AEBHRYIER Z EEH R R0E
120K (ZF— \F : 30E90K) - R &
SR EAXKRKEERR T EKIRR
Z BRI (B SR B BB A (TR 1E
RYER-

R R R Z BREIEAARKSIME -

—T-NFER
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance
for impairment at the end of the reporting period, based
on the date of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if

earlien), is as follows:

20

PE UL BR K (#)
RERR ZHEZAH (RERkER
Hl- B R ) 2 IR MR ERE
ZARBE DTN :

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0£30H 49,593 51,044
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,702 2,785
61 to 90 days 61E90H 904 -
91 to 180 days 912180H - 57,395
More than 180 days 1808 KA £ 101,450 125,498
154,649 236,722

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that is not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

TRBERIE 2 BRI DT T

2019 2018

—E-hF —TN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&ET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR 8 BRI R R (B 53,199 50,218
Past due but not impaired BaHERRE

0 to 30 days 0&30H - 3,179

31 t0 90 days 31£90H - 34,572

91 to 180 days 91£180H - 30,906

more than 180 days 180H LA £ 101,450 117,847

154,649 236,722

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide lifetime
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for these trade receivables.
The management assessed the expected loss on trade
receivables individually.
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)
The individually impaired trade receivables are recognised
based on the credit history of its customers, such as
financial difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions and are adjusted for forward-looking

20

PEUBR K (#)

I EERERERRERDERETP
M E L MBI SRR s 3ELY
BT MSBAERRALIZEELER
LR AN AT ES BT IE I E R AR o

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables is as follows:

FEM PR FORE R EEEHIT

HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFMHA—H -
Provision for impairment BEEE 11,789
Currency translation difference ERBEESR 594
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H 12,383
Amounts re-measured under ECL through ;@@Hﬂfm% FHEEENGIEN SRR
opening accumulated losses 18,055
Currency translation difference ERmEER 910
At 1 April 2018 RZE—NFMWA—A 31,348
Provision for impairment VERIEEE 32,648
Currency translation difference ERMEEZR (2,0006)
At 31 March 2019 —hF=A=+—H 61,990

—T-NFER
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194

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E— N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Trade deposits paid (note (i) ENESES (M) 1,019 41,716
Value added tax recoverable JE WS (B R K - 44,719

Other deposits paid, prepayments Efmeffike BRRERE
and other receivables E A fE W IR 39,773 32,668
40,792 119,103
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (22,465) (20,225)
18,327 98,878

Notes:

(i) The amount represents trade deposits paid to suppliers for
trading of seafood and electronic products. The entire amount is
expected to be recovered within the next twelve months.

(if) The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

S

0 EEECNTHERZEHLETFER
B5%E 2B WA BRARR+ —E

AR -

iy ‘e ANFEREMERFRZEEE

ATFIEESIE :

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

HKS$ BT 13,191 6,673
RMB AR 5,136 92,205
18,327 98,878
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21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21 BT ANREREMERKE

RECEIVABLES (continuea) (#)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (48)
(i)~ The movement in the provision for impairment of deposits, (i) ke TEFE R E b R IER E R
prepayments and other receivables are as follows: gEIT
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+FMA—H 9,229
Provision for impairment BER 10,480
Currency translation difference ERBEEZR 516
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—H 20,225
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BRBYVIRTEEENAENSE
opening accumulated losses 1,953
Currency translation difference ERMEEZR 38
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FMA—H 22,216
Provision for impairment oL (B B 989
Currency translation difference ERBEEZR (740)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 22,465
22 HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 22 BHEEERE
2019 2018
—2-nE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Equity securities held-for-trading: BIEEBERAES
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLEM 70,599 59,951

RBE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HL*F
EARER SFEERENEERER
3,500,000/ TL NN &8 £ 2 B — (&
BEREHCEREEFEEE —FMU L
HHfFFEEERENBEHRRARE
25 EMBRAESZ 2 AABELRZ S

The provision for impairment loss on held-for-trading
investments of HK$3,500,000 recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2018 representing one of the investment
portfolio of listed equities listed in Hong Kong which has
been suspended for trading over a year. The remaining
held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The fair values of listed equity
securities are determined by reference to the bid prices on
the stock exchange.

b T = 195
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23 LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23 EWREREFE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Loan receivables ERER 87,275 75,627
Interest receivables FEUF B 1,084 1,337
Loan and interest receivables R E R H S 88,359 76,964
Less: Impairment loss B OREBE (874) (489)
87,485 76,475
Current portion of loan and FEME R ) SRV ER &L 1
interest receivables 87,485 70,167
Non-current portion of loan and FEMCE FR ) B FE BN BRI 4D
interest receivables - 6,308
87,485 76,475
Analysed as: DI
Within one year —FR 87,485 70,167
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ EBE-ZFAF (RIEEEMTE) - 6,308
87,485 76,475
The carrying amounts of the loan and interest receivables JEREFEFIE ZEEAMBENUTIEET|
are denominated in the following currencies: B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
HK$ BTT 30,309 21,499
RMB AR 57,176 54,976
87,485 76,475
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(Continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of loan and

interest receivables are as follows:

23 LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23 BUWERKIER (&)

R E R LM SR EREESHIMT

HK$'000
T
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+EmA—H -
Provision for impairment B 489
Currency translation difference ERBEER -
At 31 March 2018 R-—ZE—N\FE=ZA=+—H 489
Amounts re-measured under ECL through BBV R ERET I ENEE
opening accumulated losses 891

Currency translation difference ERMEZESR 37
At 1 April 2018 RZE-NFWOA—H 1,417
Reversal of impairment loss BERE (493)
Currency translation difference EHREZER (50)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—-—NEF=A=+—H 874

Loan receivables are interest-bearing at approximately 8%
to 18% (2018: approximately 4% to 18%) and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the Group's customers. The
maturity date for each loan contract is normally not more
than 3 years (2018: 3 years) and were unsecured. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the end of
the reporting period is the carrying value of the loan and
interest receivables. No loan and interest receivables at the
end of the reporting period was past due.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
applies the general approach to provide for ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9 for loan and interest receivables, which permits
the use of the 12 months ECL provision for these loan and
interest receivables, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, which the
Group then recognises lifetime ECL. The management
assessed the expected loss on all loan and interest
receivables individually and the credit quality of loan and
interest receivables has been assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates.

JEWE FUAKIBRZE18% (—FE—N\F: 49
A%ZE18% )T 8 YN EAEEEPHETE
MEEHRAEE - EERARZIHA—
RRTERIBIFE (—F—/\F :35F) - U RE
E# - REREHRMEBENZANEER
R IR TR N M B R AR (B - IR ¥R &
RORBERWEREFEEBH-

B-Z-N\FOA-BRATEVER
SFRERNFIRAR  AEEERA KT
% HERKERRMNERBBM B REE
AIESRREHRARNEEH R BR
BRI F R E R R B FA12
fE A TEEE SRR - BRIE B WA HER
REERBRABREEM AEEAERE
AR EESR - ERELHMARK
B KA S AR EREE - KSR K
NENEEERD2ZEAMB T HED
R BEERETTE

—FNEER
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24

25

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24 RERBITERE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITERFERE 140,293 172,778
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are RERBITHEGFCEEENUTIEES]
denominated in the following currencies: B:
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
HKS BT 9,938 2,409
us$ ETT 1,240 4,080
EUR BT 4 430
RMB AR 129,111 165,859
140,293 172,778
The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign 1A S 45 82 R INEE D 5 1t Z5 SN
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies RITHBR B EL PR AE TP EIR
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are JiF Sk SN B I 28 4D 2 AR AR BN TR A AR o
subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
STRUCTURED DEPOSIT 25 HEMEFER

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a RMB denominated
principal-protected structured deposit of HK$18,750,000
issued by a bank which carried interest at interest rate
of 4.05% per annum. As the directors of the Company
evaluated the performance of the structured deposit on
a fair value basis, the Group designated the structured
deposit as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition. The fair value of the structured deposit
was determined by reference to recent market transaction.
The structured deposit was redeemed in April 2018. The
change in fair value up to the date of redemption was not
significant.
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26 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
The amounts as at 31 March 2018 represented RMB
denominated bank deposits which had been released upon
the full settlement of the relevant bills payable amounting to
approximately HK$5.6 million during the year. The deposits

26

ZREBITER

RZZ—N\F=ZA=+—H8 " ZHIEEN
ARBHEZRITEARAFEANRR
© FA XY /5,600,000 7T 2 FE T R IR EE
BEEROME - 7R FF B1.40E

carried interest at average interest rate of 1.40% per FTE -
annum.
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —ZFE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Analysed as: Sk g’ (N
Within one year —FR - 5,622
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF (REEEMT) = -
- 5,622
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BA
(@) Authorised capital (@ ZEERK
Number of Nominal
shares value
RGEE H{E
HK$'000
FAET
As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, RZE—NEFERZZT—NF
ordinary shares of —A=+—8"
HK$0.02 each FREEC.2B T LM 5,000,000,000 100,000
(b) Issued and fully paid capital (b) ERITRHBEZRAK
Number of Nominal
shares value
R EE H{E
HK$'000
FAET
As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, RZE—NEFERZZT—NF
ordinary shares of =A=+—8"
HK$0.02 each BREECO2B T EFMKkY  3,680,600,000 73,612

—T-NFER
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 2 September 2013, the shareholders of
the Company approved the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 2 September 2013,
unless otherwise terminated. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the directors, employees and
other participants of the Company and the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
shares in issue on 2 September 2013 (i.e. 72,400,000
shares) unless the Company seeks the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the
10% limit under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting
on 2 September 2014, the 10% limit under the
Share Option Scheme was refreshed to 33,760,000
consolidated shares (after the consolidation of every
ten shares of HK$0.01 each into one share of HK$0.10
each which was effective in January 2015). Further,
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 26 August 2016, the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme was further refreshed to
73,612,000 shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable
period and the number of shares subject to each
option will be determined by the Board at the time of
grant. No option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.
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29

28 TRADE PAYABLES 28 FE(FERRX
The aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: JER IR R ARER DT AR T -
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZT—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0to 90 days 0Z290H 2 -
91 to 180 days 912180H - -
181 to 365 days 1812365H - -
More than 365 days 3658 M £ - 51,856
2 51,856
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in FE R BREEUARKESE-
RMB.
ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 29 EFtER HttEMSREREK
DEPOSIT RECEIVED B
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Deposit received (Note (i) B Uiz e (FFE0) 14,771 11,437
Accruals and other payables (Note (i)  FE&tE 3 & H b jE <t 7108
(PR EEGD ) 20,766 49,774
35,537 61,211

b T = 201
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29 ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 29

DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the security deposits received from the
customers of finance lease business.

(i) Included in the accruals and other payables was RMB12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$14 million) (2018: RMB12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$15 million)), being a bank
loan (the “Vessel Loan”) due by the vendor (the “Vendor”) to a
bank in the PRC (the “PRC Bank”) to be paid up by the Group
in respect of the Group's acquisition of a vessel (the “Vessel”).
As the Vendor and the PRC Bank were still in negotiation with
the repayment arrangement, it has yet been repaid and was
accounted for as other payables as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.
The Vessel Loan is secured by the Vessel of the Group with a
carrying value of approximately HK$14 million (2018: HK$21.5
million) as at 31 March 2019.

(i) The carrying amounts of accruals, other payables and deposit
received are denominated in the following currencies:

BETER HUBEMNRERE K
BRE (#)

FaE

() GeEEAREEEEBETREZRE
b2l

(ih WAERREMENRERFEE—£A
K 12,000,0007T (48 & A #914,000,000
B (ZF—)\F: AR#12,000,000
7T (8% 7 #915,000,000/8 7T ) ) &5 AN &
EX T EBAEBE G UE S ([
MmO mEBRERAEAH ([EH])R—HEHA
WERTT ([BAERTT]) ZRITE R (M A
B3]) cHRE A RZBERRITNHRER
ZHEE  ZMMERR =T —NFR
—E-NFZA=t—BHEKEE THA
Ik BV L A SR B R 3 o S AR B AR
EER-_E-hE=A=1+—HEELHA
14,000,0007% 7T ( —Z — )\ £ : 21,500,000
BT Z e AATER IR o

(i)  FEEEMR HUEMARERERIEZES 2R
EEA TSI EHESIE -

2019 2018
—E-hEF TN\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FiBT
HKS ok 3,634 3,716
us$ X7 370 370
EUR BT 368 404
RMB AR 31,165 56,721
35,537 61,211
30 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 30 EN—RBREERE

31

Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the balance
is denominated in HK$.

AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 31
INTERESTS

Amount due to non-controlling interests is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of balance is denominated in RMB.

Annual Report 2019

N —REEFALEER RELEE
KEEE RFR/BRZEEENBTY
8o

FEAS FE 42 R e 35 SR IH
R SRR s TR BB - R B RIZ

EREFER - ZFEHRIIEAEBAARE
SIfE -



CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o B 05 3 B ik

32 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32 EEBEAR

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
are as follows:

AEBECHRAR/ECHEREZIRE
BT :

Revaluation
of Investment
property
REWME
BfE
HK$'000
T

At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZZE—tFMHA—B K
—E-NFE=A=+—H -
Charge to equity Az kR (2,414)
Charge to profit or loss (Note 9) BiEm Tk (FEE) (29)
Currency translation difference ERMEERE (64)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H (2,507)

At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$168,178,000 (2018: HK$105,322,000) available for
offset against future profits. The Hong Kong tax losses
of HK$86,118,000 (2018: HK$70,079,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely and the remaining tax losses will expire
from 2020 to 2023 (2018: 2019 to 2022). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the unrecognised
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

In cases where there are future profits generated to utilise
the tax losses, a material deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
period in which the estimated future profits are expected.

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC
subsidiaries to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

The Group’s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Based on the
dividend distribution plan, retained profits as at 31 March
2019 amounting to HK$41,022,000 (2018: HK$32,565,000)
will not be distributed by the subsidiaries as dividend in
the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation has not been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary difference attributable to retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not release in
the foreseeable future.

R-B-NF=A=+—8 KEFEHFK
&) R IEE18168,178,00006 7T ( —ZF— )\
£ :105,322,0007%8 7T ) LA FA VB 85 2K 20
Ao &5 B TH §54886,118,0008 T (=&
— J\ £ : 70,079,000/ JT ) 7] 42 BR HA 4% &2
FHEBOREBEEER _Z-_SF5 =
T =F(ZE-N\F ZE-NFEC
T ZF)EH e R RBETRET AR E T
WA - SRR T IEE 88 B R E IR
HBEE-

e B & 2 A0 M) A 2 R AR TRUBS 18 - Al R
SIREXNELEHBAEE  MxFELH
TRE AR R TR R ET R O ) 2 28
AL B R E M2 E R A RRE

=7
s ©

—TTN\F—-A—BRS BIFRIER
THIGRA) T LA - o BIBOE 5 E P B Y
REREEEN MR RS BRI ERE
B R B 0 IR RS B B AR 10%TE AR ©

AEEEREEETHREMBARZKE
DIRETE] - IRIBRR B DIREH S FZEW B
NAR—ZBE-NE=ZA=+—HB2Z2RE
si F & $£41,022,0008 T (— & — N\ F:
32,565,000/ 7T ) #5 R 7] B R 2R & 5Kk
TEARRE - A AN EE ST S BT =
BRI AR B St ERR AL
AT AR S B A - AL RN BB
RADIRREB &AM TSI RN EREER
ZHBIEER B R ARG E B HRE
RETiE e

—FAEER
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33 LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33 HEWBLAAKEE

()  On 20 July 2018, the Group entered into a disposal i) RZZE-—NFEtAZ+H KKE
agreement (the "EK Disposal”) with an independent H—BYE=FIL—MHEER
third party, pursuant to which, the Group (i) disposed # ([HESEEK]) Bt AEE
of its 100% equity interest in Empower King Limited LAIR & X {812,500,0007% JT() i &
("Empower King"), an indirect wholly owned Empower King Limited ([Empower
subsidiary of the Company; and (i) assigned the Kingl) ARBZEEZEMB R
shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$11.4 million in B2 100%M8 A HE 5 M (i) B B g
full owing from Empower King to the Group for a cash Empower KingfEff A= 2 RRE
consideration of HK$12.5 million. FX#911,400,0007% 7T
The EK Disposal was completed on 31 August 2018. HESHEEKERZZE—N\F/\A
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Empower =-+—H5AK - Empower Kingi &
King as at the completion date of the EK Disposal EEHEKTEKBZFEEENEE
were as follows: FRIWAT

HK$'000
FET
Plant and equipment Bt "
Investment property "EME 13,180
Amount due to the Group R ARKBERIE (11,405)
1,786
Assignment of amount due to the Group R E N A EE IR 11,405
13,191
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary e —HEW B AR EE (691)
12,500
Satisfied by: BUATAER:
Cash Be 12,500
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal HHEMELECESFRAMAT:
is as follows:
Consideration settled in cash NI EERMN2RE 12,500

204 Annual Report 2019



B 7 YU 5 W B i

33 LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

@iy On 24 September 2018, the Group entered into (i
a disposal agreement (the “QJ Disposal”) with a
director and shareholder (the “QJ Shareholder”) of
25% equity interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu
Industrial Company Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, pursuant to which, the Group disposed of
its 75% equity interest in Qianhai Jiulongfu to the QJ
Shareholder for a cash consideration of approximately

RMB31.1 million.

The QJ Disposal was completed on 27 September
2018. The major classes of assets and liabilities of
Qianhai Jiulongfu as at the completion date of the QJ

CimRERERBRAA]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 HENRBLREE (&)

R-ZE—NFLA-+MHE A&
EERYAIENEREEBRA
A ([AT/BNER]) (KRR ZM
BEE2BWMBRAT) 2 EEN25%
e AfEZ 2 R (TQIRE])FT L
—mEEHE([HEETEQU]) -
Bt AEEUBREREAREY
31,100,0007T & BB SLEERR 2 75%
i AN A 25 F QIR ER -

HEEFHUER=ZZ—-N\FENA
“tERZEX-FIBNLERREE
FHEQTEKRAZIEERENBER

Disposal were as follows: R0
HK$'000
FAT
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BN FIEREMEWRFKIE 55,334
Inventories ey 2,225
Cash and bank balance Re RRITHET 341
Accruals, other payables and deposit received — JEET B - Efb e RIE M E Wi d ©)
Tax payable JERN I E (206)
Amount due to a non-controlling interests FEAT FETE AR M 2 U 1B (664)
57,024
Less: Non-controlling interest R IR R S (21,622)
35,402

Other financial asset arising
from the acquisition of Qianhai Jiulongfu

Release of cumulative exchange differences on

RSB NEREL
Hh S mEE 4,822

RN LT RHEREBER

translation of foreign operations 31
Release of surplus reserve BHAEZER (15)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EWBAREE 4,767)

35,473
Satisfied by: WA HRER

Cash Re 35,473
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal BHEEMEECRSFRALT

is as follows:

Consideration settled in cash UREZH2RE 35,473

Cash and bank balances disposed HEZH e MIRTTER (341)

&), 132
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34 COMMITMENTS 34
(@) Capital commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments as
at the end of the reporting period:

A
(@) EREE

AEBRHERRE AT E R

=

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted but not provided for, 25T 4B R4
— Capital contribution to a —IET—H¥EE2E
non-wholly owned subsidiary BmEMHRBAR - 149,551

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years
(2018: 1 to 3 years).

The Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease falling due as

(b) TERERIE

AEBERBEELEHELHHEAET
ME-ZFYEEREHEER—
BE=F(ZE-N\F:—FE=F)-

AEERBE NI HEHESEHE/R
AT EE R 2 RRSIEHE MK

follows: WEEAT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Not later than 1 year TIRIE 3,781 2,142
Later than 1 year but not ER1FETNERSF
later than 5 years 6,278 .
10,059 2,142
None of the leases include contingent rentals. MEHEE SR AER-
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34 COMMITMENTS (continuead)

(c)

Operating lease receivable

The Group leases certain of its properties to
independent third parties under operating lease
arrangement with lease negotiated for terms of 1 year
(2018: 1 year).

The Group had total future minimum lease receivable
under non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant
falling due as follows:

34

A8
(c) HEHERWNE

AEBERBEEEERFHBAET
HYETEYE=7 HPLHE
ER—F(ZF-—NF: —F)-

AEBRBEEREBFRI 2 N Al
HELEHERNUTHEIHZ R
KR EWHERRARENT :

2019 2018

ZE-hEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAERT

Not later than 1 year TEMF 1,053 1,260

—T-NFER
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 REHERER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (@) BRBIATEEELSEER (FA)
cash (used in)/generated from operations SHRBEREZHER
2019 2018
—E—NEF —E-)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FTET FHET
Loss before taxation BRATAIE 18 (28,119) (47,829)
Exchange gain on other Hithemh & EER e
financial asset . = (397)
Depreciation e i 13 6,323 6,544
Impairment loss on inventories 17 & (A & 18 = 1,759
Impairment loss on held-for-  FEEEREREFE
trading investments - 3,500
Impairment loss on trade FE W AR FOR B B 8
receivables ) 32,648 11,789
(Reversal of impairment loss )/ FEUR & ZX & A BURE
impairment loss on loan (B[l )/JE%T
and interest receivables (493) 489
Impairment l0ss on deposits, Zg - FAR fﬁ’\IE )
prepayments and /HMJEH b8! \/UZTEJ%TE
other receivables 990 10,480
Impairment loss on finance JE W 5t & AH &R
lease receivables B E 18 21 -
Impairment loss on property, — ¥1% &5 M =M REEE
plant and equipment R 13 5,170 -
Loss on disposal of property, — & R E LSV EE
plantand equipment ) 8 18
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & it & 2 5 /&5 18 . 5,458 -
Gain on changes in fair value ~ Hih & @& E QX A EE R T
of other financial assets - (1,225)
Interest income FSWA 7 (697) (1,100)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on held- #{EE E1% & R &35
for-trading investments (Yes) B Jééﬁ B (5,935) 16,913
Realised gain on held-for- EFRSIEEERE R
trading investments . o (4,229) (3,450)
Unrealised gain on REBWEMEB MK E
investment property
revaluation 7 (297) (1,600)
Cash generated from/(used in) RET&iE & ¢ S B pI & & E55
operations before working s/ (FiA)BEe
capital changes ) 10,858 (4,127)
Decrease in trade receivables & U B8R UL 31,673 172,644
Decrease/(increase) e EER L, ()
in bills receivable 16,383 (16,383)
Increase in factoring receivables J& W (R 323 /\IEi‘jJU (8,178) -
Decrease in deposits, o BNRIEL
prepayments and other H b e H&ZTAIE/UZ A
receivables o 22,436 16,341
Increase in net finance lease  FEYEL & TH & FRIEFREIE N
receivables (63,216) (1,063)
(Increase)/decrease & HSZ, xRS (38m)
in loan and interest B
receivables _ (11,396) 35,282
(Increase)/decrease in & (Em),md
inventories (554) 8,882
Decrease in trade payables e 1<t BRSO (51,854) (161,845)
Increase in contract liabilities & &) & (&350 1,931 -
Decrease in bills payables J& {5 =503 (5,622) (35,313)
(Decrease)/increase in FESTE A - AT RUIE R
accruals, other payables Bz Crd), /i
and deposit received (25,668) 22,308
Cash (used in)/generated from #&& & %% (FrA) Fi5HE <
operations (83,207) 36,726
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for the year ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 presented.

35

(b) EXFHHIR

mERERER (4)

AEEHWNEBEE-_TE-HLER_T

~\F=A=+—

BIEFEME5

BRI FRE B FRE DO

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEY 140,293 172,778
Restricted bank deposits SREBITER - 5,622
Structured deposits EEMETR - 18,750
Borrowing B
- Amount due to a director —EN—RESZHIE (4,556) (5,389)
Net cash e FE 135,737 191,761
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
HitrEE RERHELZER
Borrowing
- Amount
Cashand Restricted duetoa
cash bank director
equivalents  deposits  Structured BR-
BeR ZRH deposit  Ef—% Total
ReZEY ROER £BMER  EEXE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT FEL FE TET
Net cash as at RZZE—t4F
1 April 2017 mA—RH
ReF® 98,144 40,935 - (6,210) 132,869
Cash flows Bemg 7438 (35,313) 18,750 821 (8,304)
Foreign exchange NEE
adjustments 67,196 - - - 67,196
Net cash as at RZZT—\F
31 March 2018 “A=+—-8k
and 1 April 2018 —T-N\EMA—-HH
Be 38 172,778 5,622 18,750 (5,389) 191,761
Cash flows BERE 10,609 (5,622) (18,750) 833 (12,930)
Foreign exchange NEE H
adjustments (43,094) - - - (43,094)
Net cash as at RZZ-NEF
31 March 2019 =A=1+—H#H
Reg® 140,293 - - (4,556) 135,737

b T = 209
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Key management compensation
The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

36

EHREAERS
FTEEEAESRMH
AFEEANASEEHEEZEREABNEE 0
T

2019 2018

—E-hNEF —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & 285 R H 38 7 9,533 9,863
Contributions to retirement benefits RKAE T B

scheme 90 104

9,623 9,967

Apart from the above, the Group disposed of its 75% equity
interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiulongfu Industrial Company
Limited (“Qianhai Jiulongfu®), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, to a director and shareholder
of Qianhai lJiulongfu at a consideration of RMB31.1 million
during the year.

37 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The directors of the Company regard Superb Smart Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company of the Company.
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 ARBMBMRRRRFBEED
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY o
(@ Information about the statement of financial position @ ARERMEARPBHBARNEKE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is B
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment BT 484 1,677
Interests in subsidiaries N SN P - 748,253
484 749,930
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BNRIER
other receivables o E W IR 10,734 1,750
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE 70,599 59,951
Amount due from subsidiaries/ ERHBAR / i Bf 8
a subsidiary NAE)FRIB 675,355 12,913
Cash and bank balances e RRTTHER 7,408 1,068
764,096 75,682
Total assets EE®E 764,580 825,612
EQUITY xR
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital &N 73,612 73,612
Reserves e 685,274 744,749
Total equity ERARH 758,886 818,361
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables and JEETE R B EA
deposit received AN B iR e 1,138 1,862
Amount due to a director JER—RESFHIE 4,556 5,389
Total liabilities weEs 5,694 7,251
Total equity and liabilities EaRBERAE 764,580 825,612
Net current assets REBEETFE 758,402 68,431
Total assets less EEHBERABAE
current liabilities 758,886 818,361
The statement of financial position of the Company RAFZHERRAEZDR-_ZE—H,
was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June EXA -t ERAREESHET A
2019 and was signed on its behalf. REZE,
Zheng Juhua Chan Chi Yuen
BT R &
Director Director
EE EFE
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continuead)

(o)

38 RXARAUBRREREFEEH

Information about the reserve movement of the

(%)

O ARFRMERRZ FREBER

Company at the end of the reporting period is as LUNNE
follows:
Share Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
& E BEREH 2itER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THL THTL THL
At 1 April 2017 RZT—t%F
MA—H 795,408 34,178 (31,885) 797,701
Loss for the year AEEBE - - (52,952) (52,952)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
—A=+-H 795,408 34,178 (84,837) 744,749
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\F
MA—A 795,408 34,178 (84,837) 744,749
Loss for the year KEEBSE - - (59,475) (59,475)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-N%F
ZRA=+—H 795,408 34,178 (144,312) 685,274
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39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 IEWE’&?

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 THERRFAR_E—NF-_A=1+—
March 2019: EZI%WE’A;.
Particulars of issued/ Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ registered and fully paid Principal activities and shares held by
Name registration share capital place of operation the Company
£ R/ ERTRMEEBRA TEERREERE ARAFFRAB DL
Shares held directly:
EREE:
Noble Century Investment British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each Investment holdings 100%
Group Limited ERBRBREE 1REREEIET BB RERR
Shares held indirectly:
BREE
Noble Century Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Money lending operated in Hong Kong 100%
ChREBERAR B 10,0007 7T REBEEREEEY
Chi (R BERERRAR People’s Republic of China US$43,000,000 Finance leasing operated in the PRC 100%
H 43,000,000 T REBEEHERERES
Noble Century KS Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Investment holdings and mould trading 100%
ChEAEEERAA B 100,0007% 7T in Hong Kong and the PRC
REZREREARTELLERAZS
CHORINESBRAR People’s Republic of China RMB200,000,000 Electronic products trading in the PRC 100%
H AR #200,000,0007C RREREETERES
FRUREE ORI BR AR People’s Republic of China HK$40,000,000 Seafood trading in the PRC 100%
H 40,000,000% 7T REBKEEHES
Hidili Pacific Industrial Co Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Methanol trading in the PRC 100%
ERFEEEERA B 1,000,000% 7 RPBEEREEHES
WERCIHREER AR People’s Republic of China RMB10,000,000 Vessel Chartering operated mainly in the 100%
FE AR #10,000,0007C PRC and Southeast Asia region
FERPERRBETHELERHEE
£%
FITERELNERAA People’s Republic of China RMB2,000,000 Frozen food trading in the PRC 70%
R AR 2,000,000 REERELRRAES
CHEEZ(RIDBRA People’s Republic of China RMB50,000,000 Provision of entrusted loan in the PRC 100%
H AR #50,000,0007T RPBREERTER
Upwell Miracle Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each Investment holdings 100%
ERBRBREE 1REREEIET 2R RERRK
EREHCIROEEEZHAERAF People’s Republic of China RMB100,000 Provision of consultancy service 100%
H AR #100,000T inthe PRC
R BB 4 5 T AR
Con (R EREER People’s Republic of China US$150,000 Provision of consultancy and 100%
h 150,000% T factoring services in the PRC
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank balance of approximately HK$130,318,000
(2018: approximately HK$165,491,000) are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 7 January 2019, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition”) with independent
third parties, pursuant to which, the Company agreed
to acquire 100% equity interest in ChaoShang Financial
Holding Limited and its subsidiaries at a consideration of
HK$250 million, details of which have been disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 7 January 2019.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 31 May
2019, the Acquisition was approved by the shareholders
at a special general meeting held by the Company. The
Acquisition has yet to be completed as at the date of this
report.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 12 April
2019, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent to set up a bond issue program for placement
of bonds (the “Bonds”) with aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$50,000,000. As at the date of this report, an
aggregate principal amount of HK$7,800,000 of the Bonds
has been issued by the Company:.
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE -\ Tt T CZT-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FEL FHEL FEL
Results %5
Revenue g 108,240 463268 2,137,192 1,373,585 322,056
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (B518) /& F (28,119) (47,829) (12,178) (15,892) 8,816
Taxation charge BB (7,909) (6,729) (6,380) (2,680) (835)
(Loss)/profit attributable to KOAFEAER
owners of the Company (B8B),/ &7 (32,167) (48,407) (17,693) (18,754) 7,983
(Loss)/profit attributable to FEREREN
non-controlling interests (B#]),/ &7 (3,861) (6,151) (1,365) 182 )
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (B8)/&H (36,028) (54,558) (19,058) (18,572) 7,981
Dividends 85} - - - - -
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BEMAE 806,474 1,007,905 1,153,763 1,155,855 352,003
Total liabilities BfEmE 58,176 138,730 308,716 278,083 136,378
Net assets BEFE 748,298 869,175 845,047 877,772 215,625
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